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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
8390 E. Crescent Parkway, Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Phone: 303-779-5710
www.littletonvillagemd.com
NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING AND AGENDA
DATE:

Tuesday, October 18, 2022

TIME:

5:30 p.m.

LOCATION:

Via Microsoft Teams
You can attend the meetings in any of the following ways:
URL:

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetupjoin/19%3ameeting_N2FmN2YzMDYtMTg3NS00NDNjLThhNjQtNDQyMzQ0ZmU
3MTMw%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224aaa468e-93ba-4ee3ab9f-6a247aa3ade0%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%227e93cd08-3bae-48d3-b32ed8f57cd88c24%22%7d
Dial in:
1-720-547-5281 United States, Denver
Phone Conference ID: 552 943 796#
Board of Directors District No. 2
Phil Cernanec
Maria McAfee
Zach Tedeschi
Holly Bundschu
Jim Bowlby, Jr.

I.

Office
President
Treasurer
Secretary
Assistant Secretary
Assistant Secretary

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS
A.

Call to order and approval of agenda.

B.

Present disclosures of potential conflicts of interest.

C.

Confirm quorum, location of meeting and posting of meeting notices.

Term Expires
May, 2023
May, 2025
May, 2023
May, 2025
May, 2023
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D.

Public comment.
Members of the public may express their views to the Board on matters that affect
the District that are otherwise not on the agenda. Comments will be limited to
three (3) minutes per person.

II.

III.

E.

Discuss requirements of Section 32-1-809, C.R.S. and direct staff regarding
compliance for 2023 (District Transparency Notice).

F.

Discuss and consider approval of 2023 insurance renewal. Consider approval of
documents needed to obtain or maintain insurance coverage through the Colorado
Special Districts Property and Liability Pool and T. Charles and authorize
membership in the Special District Association (to be distributed).

CONSENT AGENDA
A.

Review and consider approval of minutes from the August 2 and September 19,
2022 Special Board Meetings (enclosed).

B.

Confirm 2023 meeting dates and time: Fourth Tuesday of January, April, July and
October at 5:30 p.m.

C.

Ratify and approve Interim Claims (enclosed).

D.

Review and consider acceptance of September 30, 2022 Cash Position Report
(enclosed).

E.

Consider approval of engagement letter with Wipfli LLP to prepare the 2022 Audit.

F.

Consider ratification of 2021 Annual Report (enclosed).

MANAGER MATTERS
A.

Consider approval of CliftonLarsonAllen LLP statement(s) of work (enclosed).

B.

Review and consider approval of Independent Contractor Agreement for 2023
Snow Removal Services between the District and BrightView Landscape Services,
Inc. (enclosed).

C.

Review and consider approval of Independent Contractor Agreement for 2023
Landscape Services between the District and BrightView Landscape Services, Inc.
(enclosed).

D.

Review October 2022 BrightView Landscape Report (enclosed).

E.

Update on website management bids received.

F.

Other.
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IV. FINANCIAL MATTERS

V.

VI.

A.

Conduct public hearing to consider amendment of the 2022 Budget. If necessary,
consider adoption of Resolution to Amend the 2022 Budget (enclosed).

B.

Conduct public hearing on the proposed 2023 Budget and consider adoption of
Resolution to Adopt the 2023 Budget, Appropriate Funds and Set Mill Levies
(enclosed).

C.

Authorize District Accountant to prepare the DLG-70 Certification of Tax Levies
form for certification to the Board of County Commissioners and other interested
parties.

D.

Appointment of Board member to sign the DLG70 Certification of Tax Levies.

E.

Discuss and consider 2023 operations and maintenance fees.

F.

Other.

LEGAL MATTERS
A.

Consider adoption of Resolution Calling a Regular Election for Directors on May
2, 2023, appointing the DEO and authorizing the DEO to perform all tasks required
for the conduct of a mail ballot election (enclosed). Self-Nomination and
Acceptance Forms are due by February 24, 2023. Discuss need for ballot issues
and/or questions.

B.

Consider proposals for District accounting services.

C.

Consider proposals for District management services.

D.

Other.

DIRECTOR MATTERS
A.

Update on playground mulch renewal and first priority areas around units and
moving forward with additional mulching as budget allows.

B.

Update on Murphy USA gas station.

C.

Update on Republic Services waste collection community issues.

D.

Update on sinkhole repair.

E.

Update on Design Review Committee process.

F.

Update on sprinkler system power timeline.
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VII.

G.

Discuss dead tree removal/replacement responsibility for north Stormwater
detention pond.

H.

Discuss selected tree installation/replacement in 2023 Budget.

I.

Discuss dog park expansion.

J.

Other.

OTHER BUSINESS
A.

Other.

VIII. ADJOURNMENT
There are no more regular meetings scheduled for 2022.
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RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
HELD
AUGUST 2, 2022
A special meeting of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Littleton
Village Metropolitan District No. 2 (the “District”) was convened on Tuesday,
August 2, 2022, at 5:00 p.m. via Microsoft Teams. The meeting was open to
the public.
ATTENDANCE

Directors In Attendance:
Holly Bundschu, Treasurer
Maria McAfee, Assistant Secretary
Jim Bowlby, Jr., Assistant Secretary
Zach Tedeschi, Secretary
President Phil Cernanec was absent and excused.
Also, In Attendance:
Denise Denslow, Stephanie Odewumi and Thuy Dam; CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
(“CLA”)
Joan Fritsche, Esq.; Fritsche Law, LLC
Dennis Bedford; BrightView Landscaping
Isabelle Lockwood; AMLI Residential
Lynn Christensen, Ken Martinelli, Britney, Deb Keith, Diana Kurk and other
District residents

ADMINISTRATIVE
MATTERS

Call to order and approval of agenda: Ms. Denslow called the meeting to
order at 5:09 p.m. Following review, upon a motion duly made by Director
Bundschu, seconded by Director McAfee and, upon vote, unanimously carried,
the Board approved the agenda, as amended to include the election of officers
and Executive Session.
Disclosures of potential conflicts of interest: None.
Quorum, location of meeting and posting of meeting notices: A quorum of
the Board was present and the meeting location (Microsoft Teams) and meeting
notice posting were confirmed. Director Cernanec was absent and excused.
Public comment: Ms. Christensen requested notes for the newsletter to be
distributed to the community. She discussed work completed by BrightView and
Mr. Bedford stated that the free mulch that had been distributed from spring
storm mulch programs was too inconsistent to use in the community. It was
noted that there is a proposal pending approval for filling in holes from removed
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trees. Ms. Christensen requested that notification be provided when weed
control products are used. She and Ms. Denslow discussed the cost of the
community dumpster for Dumpster Day, noting that the cost was approximately
$340 per dumpster with a $75 per delivery fee, totaling approximately $830. Ms.
Kirk inquired about mulch in the remaining 5 units in the two-story units. It was
noted that these should be completed within the next week. Mr. Martinelli
discussed tree replacement and garbage can violations with the Board. Ms.
Denslow stated that she reached out to the City of Littleton regarding the
landscaping installation on the north side of the new apartment complex to
determine if it was installed according to approved plans. Ms. Lockwood
informed the Board that there is a second AMLI community meeting on August
9th at 6:00 p.m. She will provide information to CLA to distribute via email to
the community.
ELECT
BOARD OFFICERS

Ms. Fritsche noted this is the first Board meeting after the May 3, 2022
Directors’ election and following discussion, upon motion duly made by
Director Bowlby, seconded by Director Tedeschi and, upon vote, unanimously
carried, the following slate of officers of the Board was elected:
President:
Treasurer:
Secretary:
Assistant Secretary:
Assistant Secretary:

CONSENT AGENDA

Phil Cernanec
Maria McAfee
Zach Tedeschi
Holly Bundschu
Jim Bowlby, Jr.

Minutes from the April 26, 2022 Board Meeting:
Interim Claims:
June 30, 2022 Financial Statements and Cash Position Report:
Following review, upon a motion duly made by Director Tedeschi, seconded
by Director Bowlby and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved
and/or accepted the Consent Agenda items, as presented.

FINANCIAL
MATTERS

Other: None.

MANAGER
MATTERS

July 2022 BrightView Landscape Report: Mr. Bedford reviewed the July
2022 BrightView Landscape Report with the Board.
Website Management Bids Received: Ms. Denslow informed the Board that
the current website administrator is retiring and presented alternative
management options. It was noted that Directors Bundschu and Bowlby will
form a website committee and Ms. Denslow will confirm when the current

Page 2
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website administrator is to retire. Following discussion, upon a motion duly
made by Director Bowlby, seconded by Director Tedeschi and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the Board directed Directors Bowlby and Bundschu to
research website vendors.
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP Website Management: This item was
deferred until the website committee researches website vendors.
Other: None.
LEGAL MATTERS

Other: None.

DIRECTOR
MATTERS

Playground Mulch Renewal and First Priority Areas Around Units and
Moving Forward with Additional Mulching as Budget Allows: Director
Tedeschi informed the Board that he has been working with Mr. Bedford on the
playground mulch renewal. He stated that he and Mr. Bedford walked the
community several times to prioritize the installation. Director Tedeschi will
work with CLA to determine amount of remaining funds available and get as
much done as possible this year.
Murphy USA Gas Station: Director Bowlby informed the Board that Director
Cernanec confirmed that there is no update on this item at this time.
Republic Services Waste Collection Community Issues: Director Tedeschi
noted that Dumpster Day was a success and could be a potential recurrence in
the fall once landscaping items are completed.
Stump Removal of Additional Trees: Director Bowlby stated that there were
more tree stumps removed than in the contractor’s estimate and that a total of 61
stumps were removed by the contractor.
Sinkhole Repair: Director Bowlby stated that he spoke with the City of
Littleton’s engineer, Brian Thompson, regarding the sinkhole repair. It was
noted that the City should have the design complete within the next two weeks,
accompanied by a detailed plan. It was noted that it will take approximately eight
weeks to complete the bidding process and select a contractor. It was noted that
the goal is to complete the sinkhole repair this fall.
Design Review Committee Process: This item was deferred.
Sprinkler System Power Timeline: This item was deferred.
AMLI’s Expansion Plan and Approval Process and Dog Open
Space/Installation of Additional Parking Garage: This item was discussed
briefly during Public Comment. The Board requested more information be
Page 3
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shared following the August 9th community meeting regarding open space and
how to address the inevitable increase in the dog population. Ms. Lockwood also
stated that AMLI has a crew come out on a monthly basis to maintain the lot and
remove trash and dumped items.
Board Positions, Duties and Responsibilities: This item was discussed in
Executive Session.
Bill Approval Process: It was noted that Director McAfee is the primary signer
and Director Bundschu is the secondary signer until Director Cernanec can
attend a meeting to discuss further. Director McAfee requested a meeting with
Ms. Dam to review the process.
Request for Proposals for Community Management and Finance: This item
was discussed in Executive Session.
OTHER BUSINESS

Quorum for the next meeting: Director Bowlby noted he is not available for
the October 25, 2022 meeting. A quorum was tentatively confirmed for a special
meeting on October 18, 2022 at 5:30 p.m.

EXECUTIVE
SESSION

Executive Session pursuant to Sections 24-6-402(4)(b) and (e), C.R.S.: Upon
a motion duly made by Director Bowlby, seconded by Director Tedeschi and,
upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board entered into Executive Session at
6:47 p.m. for the purpose of receiving legal advice related to District contracts
and to provide direction on contract negotiations. No record will be kept for that
portion of the Executive Session that, in the opinion of the District’s Attorney,
constitutes privileged attorney-client communications pursuant to § 24-6402(4)(b), C.R.S. The Board did not take any formal action during Executive
Session, pursuant to § 24-6-402(4), C.R.S. Upon a motion duly made by
Director Bowlby, seconded by Director Tedeschi and, upon vote, unanimously
carried, the Board exited Executive Session and returned to the regular meeting
at 7:25 p.m.
No further action was taken by the Board.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, upon a
motion duly made by Director Bowlby, seconded by Director Tedeschi and,
upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board adjourned the meeting at 7:26 p.m.
The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes of the abovereferenced meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

Page 4
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______________________________
Secretary for the Meeting
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MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
HELD
SEPTEMBER 19, 2022
A special meeting of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Littleton
Village Metropolitan District No. 2 (the “District”) was convened on Monday,
September 19, 2022, at 5:00 p.m. at 3900 E. Mexico Avenue, #300, Denver,
CO 80210. The meeting was open to the public.
ATTENDANCE

Directors In Attendance:
Maria McAfee, Treasurer
Zach Tedeschi, Secretary
Holly Bundschu, Assistant Secretary
Jim Bowlby, Jr., Assistant Secretary
President Phil Cernanec was absent and excused.
Also, In Attendance:
Joan Fritsche, Esq.; Fritsche Law, LLC

CALL TO ORDER

Call to order and approval of agenda: Director Bowlby called the meeting to
order at 5:08 p.m. Following review, upon a motion duly made by Director
Bundschu, seconded by Director McAfee and, upon vote, unanimously carried,
the Board approved the agenda.
Disclosures of potential conflicts of interest: None.
Quorum, location of meeting and posting of meeting notices: A quorum of
the Board was present and the meeting location and meeting notice posting
were confirmed. Director Cernanec was absent and excused.

STUDY SESSION

Accounting and Management Services: The Board reviewed proposals for
District accounting and management services and conducted interviews with
representatives from Community Resource Services of Colorado, LLC, Public
Alliance, LLC and Morain Bakarich, CPAs.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, upon a
motion duly made by Director Bowlby, seconded by Director McAfee and, upon
vote, unanimously carried, the Board adjourned the meeting at 7:25 p.m.
The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes of the abovereferenced meeting.
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Respectfully submitted,

______________________________
Secretary for the Meeting
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Littleton Village MD No. 2
Interim Claims July 29 Through October 12, 2022
Payment Date
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
7/29/2022
8/4/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
8/22/2022
9/8/2022

Vendor
UNCC
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
The Poo Crew
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
The Poo Crew
Icenogle Seaver Pogue
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Republic Services #535
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
UNCC

Ref #
222060904
5177263
5186414
5166913
5180069
122657
5168987
5190111
3346353
122822
21897
5183853
3346353
5182594
7985207
7985206
0535‐005358877
3347225
7966104
5180068
4159666576
4110735162
2225904479
5906951647
8680159677
8350126891
6959968532
7261713794
328669627
8111193712
9980742855
8583973414
3921816864
6556439692
7646947966
7705346081
418067667
6329845523
3076992129
1680115488
9912413164
2027129501
9195063480
9978081054
2973778565
692024458
3350708352
5357088693
215804288
3040015381
222070894

Account Name
District no. 1's expenses
Irrigation repairs
Irrigation repairs
Irrigation repairs
Irrigation repairs
Pet waste removal
Irrigation repairs
Irrigation repairs
PIF collection fee
Pet waste removal
District no. 1's expenses
Irrigation repairs
Billing services
Irrigation repairs
Landscape maintenance
Landscape maintenance
Trash
Accounting
Landscape maintenance
Irrigation repairs
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Irrigation water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Irrigation water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Domestic water
Irrigation water
Irrigation water
Irrigation water
Irrigation water
Irrigation water
Irrigation water
District no. 1's expenses

Amount ($)
43.87
146.83
153.15
167.92
233.40
233.88
297.75
320.38
401.97
446.25
480.00
592.28
1,328.42
1,645.76
2,680.00
3,360.00
3,466.84
3,575.00
6,581.00
347.86
55.00
59.40
85.53
89.93
89.93
94.33
111.93
111.93
118.09
118.09
124.25
125.13
126.89
133.93
151.53
154.17
155.05
199.36
207.85
250.09
252.93
272.97
280.01
311.69
324.28
1,205.13
1,216.52
1,365.56
3,092.00
6,360.58
18.53
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Payment Date
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/8/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022
9/19/2022

Vendor
Xcel Energy
Xcel Energy
Xcel Energy
Xcel Energy
Xcel Energy
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Xcel Energy
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
Xcel Energy
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
The Poo Crew
Icenogle Seaver Pogue
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
Fritsche Law LLC
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
Republic Services #535
Republic Services #535
Wipfli LLP
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water
Denver Water

Ref #
53‐0013257992‐8
53‐0012677597‐8
53‐0012427094‐1
53‐0012213032‐4
53‐0012213038‐0
5226600
53‐0011374781‐9
3374048
53‐0011332767‐3
5210543
123380
22099
3375717
3375717
3374048
2035
3358678
3358678
0535‐005330893
0535‐005384779
2085838
3377362
8031830
8007368
4159666576
4110735162
9980742855
2225904479
8350126891
6959968532
8680159677
5906951647
8583973414
7261713794
8111193712
328669627
6556439692
3921816864
7705346081
7646947966
418067667
3076992129
9912413164
1680115488
6329845523
2027129501
9195063480
9978081054
2973778565
692024458
3350708352
5357088693
215804288
3040015381

Account Name
Amount ($)
Electricity and utility inspections
64.11
Electricity and utility inspections
67.16
Electricity and utility inspections
80.74
Electricity and utility inspections
105.50
Electricity and utility inspections
106.56
Irrigation repairs
141.90
Electricity and utility inspections
172.96
PIF collection fee
201.99
Electricity and utility inspections
217.60
Irrigation repairs
413.50
Pet waste removal
446.25
District no. 1's expenses
475.50
District management
1,261.19
Property management
1,261.19
Billing services
1,463.60
Legal services
1,799.29
Property management
3,274.41
District management
3,274.41
Trash
3,466.84
Trash
3,466.84
Audit
3,500.00
Accounting
3,575.00
Landscape repairs
5,150.00
Landscape maintenance
6,581.00
Domestic water
59.40
Domestic water
63.80
Domestic water
81.13
Domestic water
89.93
Domestic water
89.93
Domestic water
107.53
Domestic water
111.93
Domestic water
123.37
Domestic water
125.13
Domestic water
126.89
Domestic water
130.41
Domestic water
136.57
Domestic water
146.25
Domestic water
151.53
Domestic water
154.17
Domestic water
162.09
Domestic water
173.53
Domestic water
226.33
Irrigation water
244.65
Domestic water
268.57
Irrigation water
282.16
Domestic water
316.09
Domestic water
323.13
Domestic water
342.49
Irrigation water
428.61
Irrigation water
1,163.73
Irrigation water
1,191.68
Irrigation water
1,340.72
Irrigation water
3,388.17
Irrigation water
5,375.26
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Payment Date
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022
10/3/2022

Vendor
UNCC
Icenogle Seaver Pogue
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Colo Special District Prop. & Liab. Pool
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Colo Special District Prop. & Liab. Pool
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
Fritsche Law LLC
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.
Republic Services #535
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP‐2
Brightview Landscape Services Inc.

Ref #
222080877
22248
3407155
5278154
23WC‐61195‐0129
5202429
5278155
23WC‐61208‐0327
3407155
3408087
3408087
2035
8038270
0535‐005411075
3408086
8054402

Account Name
District no. 1's expenses
District no. 1's expenses
PIF collection fee
Irrigation repairs
Prepaid insurance
Irrigation repairs
Irrigation repairs
Prepaid insurance
Billing services
District management
Property management
Legal services
Landscape repairs
Trash
Accounting
Landscape maintenance

Amount ($)
30.23
164.74
221.02
282.86
337.50
347.94
425.75
450.00
1,112.98
1,796.29
1,796.29
2,149.00
2,890.00
3,466.84
3,625.00
6,581.00
$ 126,935.33
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
Schedule of Cash Position
September 30, 2022
Updated as of October 12, 2022

General
Fund
1ST Bank Checking Account
Balance as of 09/30/2022
Subsequent Activities:
10/03/22 - Transfer from Colotrust
10/03/22 - Payments processed in Bill.com
10/12/22 - October Month-to-date deposits

$

2,786.27

$

9,778.98
(8,552.76)
4,012.49

ColoTrust - Savings Account
Balance as of 09/30/2022
Subsequent Activities:
10/03/22 - Transfer to Checking account
10/10/22 - Tax Collection
Anticipated Transfer to UMB 2015 Bond Fund

-

283,579.80

Anticipated Balances
UMB - 2015 Surplus Fund
Balance as of 09/30/2022
Subsequent Activities:
Anticipated Balances
UMB - 2015 Reserve Fund
Balance as of 09/30/2022
Subsequent Activities:
Anticipated Balances
UMB - 2018 Bond Fund
Balance as of 09/30/2022
Subsequent Activities:
Anticipated Balances
Total Anticipated Balances

150,000.00

(9,778.98)
1,450.09
-

UMB - 2015 Bond Fund
Balance as of 09/30/2022
Subsequent Activities:
Anticipated Transfer from District No. 3 (Debt Service)
Anticipated Transfer from ColoTrust

$

67,779.89
(16,903.66)
10,210.10
61,086.33

291,908.69

Anticipated Balances

Yield information as of 09/30/2022
ColoTrust - 2.6205%
UMB - 2.95%

Maintenance
Fund

150,000.00

Debt
Service Fund
$

-

Total
$

221.02
(221.02)
-

70,566.16
10,000.00
(25,677.44)
10,210.10
65,098.82

7,578.33

449,487.02

(221.02)
5,800.78
(13,158.09)

(10,000.00)
7,250.87
(13,158.09)

-

433,579.80

-

-

616,965.35

616,965.35

-

-

905.85
13,158.09

905.85
13,158.09

-

-

631,029.29

631,029.29

-

-

1,091,105.79

1,091,105.79

-

-

1,091,105.79

1,091,105.79

-

-

884,533.03

884,533.03

-

-

884,533.03

884,533.03

-

-

268,860.72

268,860.72

-

-

268,860.72

268,860.72

287,592.29

$

211,086.33

$ 2,875,528.83

$

3,374,207.45
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2021 ANNUAL REPORT
Pursuant to Section VII of the Amended and Restated Consolidated Service Plan for Littleton
Village Metropolitan District No. 2 (the “District”), the District shall be responsible for submitting
an annual report to the City of Littleton City Manager no later than August 1st of the subsequent
year. For the year ending December 31, 2021, the District submits the following report:
1.
prior year.

Boundary changes made to the Districts’ boundaries as of December 31 of the

No boundary changes were made to the District’s boundaries during the year ending
December 31, 2021.
2.
Intergovernmental Agreements with other governmental entities entered into
as of December 31 of the prior year.
No intergovernmental agreements were entered into during the year ending December 31,
2021.
3.
A list of all facilities and improvements constructed by the District that have
been dedicated to and accepted by the City as of December 31 of the prior year.
No improvements were dedicated to the City during the year ending December 31, 2021.
4.

The assessed valuation of the District for the current year.

The current assessed valuation for the District is $21,161,903.
5.
Current year budget including a description of the Public Improvements to be
constructed in such year.
A copy of the District’s 2022 budget is attached hereto as Exhibit A.
No Public Improvements will be constructed by the District during the year ending
December 31, 2022.
6.
Audit of the District’s financial statements, for the year ending December 31
of the previous year, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
or audit exemption, if applicable.
The District’s 2021 Audit is attached hereto as Exhibit B.
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7.
Notice of any uncured events of default by the District, which continue beyond
a ninety (90) day period, under any Debt instrument.
There were no uncured events of default by the District, which continued beyond a ninety
(90) day period, under any Debt instrument during the year ending December 31, 2021.

18

EXHIBIT A
2022 Budget
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Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2
Annual Budget
For Year Ending December 31, 2022
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
SUMMARY
2022 BUDGET
WITH 2020 ACTUAL AND 2021 ESTIMATED
For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

1/14/2022

ACTUAL
2020

ESTIMATED
2021

BUDGET
2022

$ 1,488,538

$ 1,683,452

$ 2,204,588

817,035
57,912
9,763
160,219
35,693
-

1,049,628
72,100
1,050
4,140
392,000
35,000
100
175,179
40,000
104,091

1,177,935
82,455
2,100
4,140
422,000
38,000
176,243
45,000
-

Total revenues

1,080,622

1,873,288

1,947,873

Total funds available

2,569,160

3,556,740

4,152,461

175,146
710,562

127,417
413,720
811,015

180,000
460,000
1,254,000

885,708

1,352,152

1,894,000

885,708

1,352,152

1,894,000

ENDING FUND BALANCES

$ 1,683,452

$ 2,204,588

$ 2,258,461

REQUIRED RESERVE - SERIES 2015
SURPLUS RESERVE - SERIES 2015
ESCROW RESERVE
EMERGENCY RESERVE
TOTAL RESERVE

$

$

$

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES
REVENUES
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Net investment income
Administrative fee
Maintenance fees
Domestic water fee
Other revenue
Transfer from District No. 3
Public improvement fees
Transfer from District No. 1

EXPENDITURES
General Fund
Maintenance Fund
Debt Service Fund
Total expenditures
Total expenditures and transfers out
requiring appropriation

880,075
703,377
100,000
$ 1,683,452

880,075
1,083,000
6,800
$ 1,969,875

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
1

880,075
1,083,000
7,600
$ 1,970,675
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
PROPERTY TAX SUMMARY INFORMATION
2022 BUDGET
WITH 2020 ACTUAL AND 2021 ESTIMATED
For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

ASSESSED VALUATION
Residential
Commercial
State assessed
Vacant land
Certified Assessed Value

ACTUAL
2020

ESTIMATED
2021

BUDGET
2022

$ 14,054,685
292,746
333,620
435
$ 14,681,486

$ 18,271,770
300,468
284,160
435
$ 18,856,833

$ 20,537,137
303,471
320,860
435
$ 21,161,903

11.132
44.531

11.132
44.531

11.132
44.531

55.663

55.663

55.663

MILL LEVY
General
Debt Service
Total mill levy
PROPERTY TAXES
General
Debt Service

$

Levied property taxes
Adjustments to actual/rounding
Budgeted property taxes

BUDGETED PROPERTY TAXES
General
Debt Service

1/14/2022

163,434
653,781

$

817,215
(180)

209,914
839,714

$

235,574
942,361

1,049,628
-

1,177,935
-

$

817,035

$ 1,049,628

$ 1,177,935

$

163,398
653,637

$

$

$

817,035

$ 1,049,628

209,914
839,714

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
2

235,574
942,361

$ 1,177,935
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
GENERAL FUND
2022 BUDGET
WITH 2020 ACTUAL AND 2021 ESTIMATED
For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

ACTUAL
2020
BEGINNING FUND BALANCES

$

REVENUES
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Net investment income
Other revenue

1/14/2022

ESTIMATED
2021
-

$

-

BUDGET
2022
$

97,047

163,398
11,582
166
-

209,914
14,400
50
100

235,574
16,490
100
-

Total revenues

175,146

224,464

252,164

Total funds available

175,146

224,464

349,211

EXPENDITURES
General and administrative
County Treasurer's fees
Accounting
Audit
Dues and licenses
District management
Legal services
Election expense
Contingency
District No. 1's expenses
Transfer to District No. 1
Total expenditures

2,452
172,694
175,146

3,149
38,000
3,500
768
35,000
30,000
2,000
15,000
127,417

3,534
42,000
4,000
1,000
38,000
50,000
10,000
6,466
25,000
180,000

175,146

127,417

180,000

Total expenditures and transfers out
requiring appropriation
ENDING FUND BALANCES

$

-

$

97,047

$

169,211

EMERGENCY RESERVE
TOTAL RESERVE

$
$

-

$
$

6,800
6,800

$
$

7,600
7,600

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
3
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
MAINTENANCE FUND
2022 BUDGET
WITH 2020 ACTUAL AND 2021 ESTIMATED
For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

ACTUAL
2020
BEGINNING FUND BALANCES

$

REVENUES
Administrative fee
Maintenance fees
Domestic water fee
Transfer from District No. 1
Total revenues

1/14/2022

ESTIMATED
2021
-

$

-

BUDGET
2022
$

121,511

-

4,140
392,000
35,000
104,091

4,140
422,000
38,000
-

-

535,231

464,140

-

535,231

585,651

-

30,000
15,075
35,000
3,000

33,000
16,000
38,000
6,500

-

1,000
8,000
18,000
35,000
40,000
80,000
44,000
80,000
24,645
413,720

1,500
9,000
20,000
38,000
42,000
90,000
48,000
88,000
30,000
460,000

-

413,720

460,000

TRANSFERS IN
Total funds available
EXPENDITURES
General and administrative
Billing services
Insurance and bonds
Property management
Contingency
Operations and maintenance
Electricity and utility inspections
Pet waste removal
Irrigation repairs
Domestic water
Irrigation water
Snow removal
Trash
Landscape maintenance
Landscape repairs
Total expenditures
Total expenditures and transfers out
requiring appropriation
ENDING FUND BALANCES

$

-

$

121,511

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
4

$

125,651
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
DEBT SERVICE FUND
2022 BUDGET
WITH 2020 ACTUAL AND 2021 ESTIMATED
For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

1/14/2022

ACTUAL
2020

ESTIMATED
2021

BUDGET
2022

$ 1,488,538

$ 1,683,452

$ 1,986,030

REVENUES
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Net investment income
Transfer from District No. 3
Public improvement fees

653,637
46,330
9,597
160,219
35,693

839,714
57,700
1,000
175,179
40,000

942,361
65,965
2,000
176,243
45,000

Total revenues

905,476

1,113,593

1,231,569

2,394,014

2,797,045

3,217,599

9,809
4,100
2,855

12,596
7,000
2,500

14,135
7,000
5,147
3,000

578,350
115,000
448
710,562

572,169
120,000
96,750
811,015

565,718
140,000
519,000
1,254,000

710,562

811,015

1,254,000

ENDING FUND BALANCES

$ 1,683,452

$ 1,986,030

$ 1,963,599

REQUIRED RESERVE - SERIES 2015
SURPLUS RESERVE - SERIES 2015
ESCROW RESERVE
TOTAL RESERVE

$

$

$

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES

Total funds available
EXPENDITURES
General and administrative
County Treasurer's fees
Paying agent fees
Contingency
PIF collection fee
Debt Service
Bond interest - Series 2015
Bond principal - Series 2015
Bond interest - Series 2018B
Capital outlay - Dog Park
Total expenditures
Total expenditures and transfers out
requiring appropriation

880,075
703,377
100,000
$ 1,683,452

880,075
1,083,000
$ 1,963,075

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
5

880,075
1,083,000
$ 1,963,075
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS

Services Provided
The District, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, was
organized by order and decree of the District Court for Arapahoe County on February 12, 2014, and is
governed pursuant to provisions of the Colorado Special District Act (Title 32, Article 1, Colorado Revised
Statutes). The District operates under a Service Plan approved by the City on September 5, 2006, and
as modified on September 3, 2013. The District’s service area is located entirely within the City of
Littleton, Arapahoe County, Colorado.
The District was established to provide financing for the construction, installation, and operation of public
improvements, including water, sanitation, streets, safety protection, storm drainage, covenant
enforcement and design review services, and parks and recreation facilities.
On November 5, 2013 the District’s voters approved for an annual increase in taxes and public
improvements fees of $5,000,000 each for general operations and maintenance and $40,000,000 for
payment due pursuant to intergovernmental agreements (IGA). The District also approved general
obligation indebtedness of $40,000,000 for each of the following: street improvements, parks and
recreation facilities, a potable and non-potable water supply, a sanitation system, a transportation system,
mosquito control facilities, traffic and safety controls, fire protection, television relay and translation
system, security services, and debt refinancing. Additionally, the District’s electors authorized the District
to collect, retain and spend all revenue annually, other than ad valorem taxes, without regard to limitations
under TABOR.
The District’s service plan limits the total debt issuance to $40,000,000. The Maximum Debt Mill Levy the
District is permitted to impose is 50.000 mills for any Debt which exceeds fifty percent of the District’s
assessed valuation. For the portion of any Debt which is equal to or less than fifty percent of the District’s
assessed valuation, either on the date of issuance or at any time thereafter, the mill levy to be imposed
to repay such portion of Debt shall not be subject to the Maximum Debt Mill Levy and, as a result, the
mill levy may be such amount as is necessary to pay the Debt service on such Debt, without limitation of
rate.
The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the
requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates as of the date of
the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions and its expected course of
actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District believes are significant to the
budget. There will usually be differences between the budget and actual results, because events and
circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material.
Revenues
Property Taxes
Property taxes are levied by the District’s Board of Directors. The levy is based on assessed valuations
determined by the County Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The levy is normally set by
December 15 by certification of the County Commissioners to put the tax lien on the individual properties
as of January 1 of the following year. The County Treasurer collects the determined taxes during the
ensuing calendar year. The taxes are payable by April or, if in equal installments, at the taxpayer’s
6
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Revenues – (continued)
election, in February and June. Delinquent taxpayers are notified in August and generally sales of the tax
liens on delinquent properties are held in November or December. The County Treasurer remits the taxes
collected monthly to the District.
The District’s Service Plan provides that the District’s mill levy may be adjusted to take into account
legislative or constitutionally imposed adjustments in assessed values or the method of their calculation,
so that, to the extent possible, the actual revenues generated are neither diminished or enhanced as a
result of such changes. Among other adjustments, a change in the ratio of actual valuation of assessable
property (assessment ratio) shall be deemed a change in method of calculating assessed valuation.
The calculation of the taxes levied is displayed on the Property Tax Summary page of the budget using
the adopted mill levy imposed by the District.
Specific Ownership Taxes
Specific ownership taxes are set by the State and collected by the County Treasurer, primarily on vehicle
licensing within the County as a whole. The specific ownership taxes are allocated by the County
Treasurer to all taxing entities within the County. The budget assumes that the District’s share will be
equal to approximately 7% of the property taxes collected.
Net Investment Income
Interest earned on the District’s available funds has been estimated based on historical interest earnings.
Public Improvement Fees
The District charges public improvement fees (PIF). The nature of the PIF is that of a fee imposed under
private contract and not through the exercise of any governmental taxing authority. The PIF is applied to
the sales of good at a rate of .75%, in addition to all the sales and use taxes that maybe imposed and is
collected by the retailers in the District and remitted to the District within 20 days after the month end.
Maintenance Fees
The District established a maintenance fee of $208 per quarter for each Single-Family residential unit,
$278 per quarter for each Multi-Family residential unit, $69 per quarter for each condo/apartment unit,
and $126 per quarter for each vacant lot. The maintenance fee revenue is used for the purpose of paying
direct and indirect costs related to the facilities and maintenance services.
Domestic Water Fees
The District established a domestic water fee of $69 per quarter for each Multi-Family residential unit.
The domestic water fee revenue is used for the purpose of paying the domestic water expenses paid for
by the District.

7
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Revenues – (continued)
Administrative Fees
The District established an administrative fee of $2.50 per month for each Multi-Family residential unit.
The administrative fee revenue is used for the purpose of defraying the cost of providing administrative
services provided by the District.
Transfer from District No. 3
Pursuant to the Capital Pledge Agreement, entered into on June 6, 2014 and amended on September 1,
2018, between the District and District No. 3, District No. 3 is obligated to impose ad valorem property
taxes for the payment of the Series 2014 Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 Senior Bonds, and Series
2018B Subordinate Limited Bonds.
Expenditures
Treasurer’s Fees
County Treasurer’s fees have been computed at 1.5% of property tax collections.
Debt Service
Principal and interest payments in 2022 are provided based upon the debt amortization schedule from
the Series 2015 Bonds discussed under Debt and Leases. Additionally, payments on Series 2014A,
2014B and 2018B Bonds are based on the amount of funds available. Therefore, a scheduled
amortization has not been included in the budget.
Debt and Leases
Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2014
On June 4, 2014, the District authorized the issuance of Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A (the
“Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of up to $12,165,000. The principal amount of the Bonds
deemed issued from time to time shall equal the amount of Acknowledged Advances made under the
Construction Funding Loan Agreement whereby which the Developer advances the funds to cover capital
costs and such advances are converted to bond proceeds through the process of Bond Counsel issuing
an opinion on each Acknowledged Advance. The District also issued Taxable Subordinate Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2014B (the “Subordinate Bonds”) in the authorized principal amount of up to
$3,335,000, in order to provide for the repayment of Acknowledged Advances in excess of $12,165,000.
The principal balance of the Bonds shall bear an interest at the rate of 8.00%, payable semi-annually on
each June 15 and December 15, commencing June 15, 2015, and shall mature on December 15, 2044.
To the extent interest on the Bonds is not paid when due, such interest shall compound annually, on each
December 15. To the extent principal of the Bonds is not paid when due, such principal shall remain

8
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Debt and Leases – (continued)
outstanding until paid. The Subordinate Bonds shall bear the same interest rate of 8.00% and to be
payable only after the payment in full of the Bonds.
The Bonds are secured and payable from the Pledged Revenue, consisting of moneys derived by the
District from the following sources, net of collection costs: (1) property tax revenues, (2) specific
ownership tax revenues, (3) PIF revenues, and (4) any other legally available moneys which the District
determines to credit to the Bond Fund. Pledged Revenue for the repayment on the Bonds also includes
revenues resulting from District No. 3’s imposition of the District No. 3 Required Mill Levy.
The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the District, as a whole or in part,
on any date thereafter, upon payment of par and accrued interest, without redemption premium. The
Bonds is subject to mandatory redemption in part on December 15 of each year, commencing December
15, 2015 to the extent of moneys on deposit.
Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2015
On December 17, 2015, the District issued Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds,
Series 2015, in the amount of $10,830,000. The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds
are used for the purposes of (i) refunding a portion of the District’s currently outstanding Subordinate
Special Revenue Bond, Series 2014A; (ii) providing capitalized interest for the Series 2015 Senior Bonds;
(iii) funding a Reserve Fund securing the Series 2015 Senior Bonds; and, (iv) paying costs of issuance
of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds.
The Series 2015 Senior Bonds bear interest at 5.375%, payable semi-annually on June 1 and December
1, beginning on June 1, 2016. Annual mandatory sinking fund principal payments are due on December
1, beginning on December 1, 2019. The Series 2015 Senior Bonds mature on December 1, 2045, and
are subject to optional redemption as described in the Indenture.
The Series 2015 Senior Bonds are secured by and payable solely from Pledged Revenue, which includes
property taxes derived from the Required Mill Levy net of the cost of collection, Specific Ownership Taxes
attributable to the Required Mill Levy, Pledged PIF Revenues, PILOT revenues (if any), and any other
legally available moneys of the District which the District deposits with the Trustee for application as
Pledged Revenue. The forecast does not include Pledged PIF or PILOT revenues. The Series 2015
Senior Bonds are also secured by amounts held in the Reserve Fund, which is to be funded upon
issuance of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds in the amount of the Required Reserve anticipated to equal
$880,075, and amounts accumulated in the Surplus Fund, if any. In accordance with the Indenture,
amounts on deposit in the Surplus Fund are to be released to the District when the Series 2015 Senior
Bonds are defeased or paid in full.
Pledged Revenue that is not needed to pay debt service on the Series 2015 Senior Bonds in any year
will be deposited to and held in the Surplus Fund, up to the Maximum Surplus Amount of 10% of par
value of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds, or $1,083,000. Under the Indenture, the Surplus Fund is
terminated upon defeasance or payment in full of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds. The District has
acknowledged that State Law places certain restrictions on the use of money derived from the Required
Mill Levy. Required Mill Levy means an ad valorem mill levy imposed upon all taxable property of the

9
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Debt and Leases – (continued)
District and District No. 3 each year in an amount sufficient, to pay the principal and interest on the Bonds
as the same become due, and to replenish the Surplus Fund to the Maximum Surplus Amount, but not
in excess of 50.000 mills (subject to adjustment for changes occurring in the method of calculating
assessed valuation). The maximum Required Mill Levy has been adjusted to 55.663.
Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2018B
On September 6, 2018, the District issued Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2018B, in the amount of $5,700,000. Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds were
used for the purposes of (i) refunding a portion of the 2014A and 2014B Bonds and (ii) paying costs in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds.
The Series 2018B Subordinate Limited Bonds were issued at the rate of 7.625% per annum and payable
annually on December 15, beginning December 15, 2018, from, and to the extent of, Subordinate
Pledged Revenue, subject to limitations of the Indenture, and mature on December 15, 2028. The Bonds
are structured as cash flow bonds meaning that there are no scheduled payments of principal prior to the
final maturity date. Unpaid interest on the Bonds compounds annually on each December 15 at the rate
then borne by the Bonds. In the event any amount due and owing on the Bonds remains outstanding on
December 15, 2055, such amount shall be deemed discharged and no longer be due and outstanding.
The Series 2018B Subordinate Limited Bonds are secured by and payable solely from Subordinate
Pledged Revenue, which is that portion of Pledged Revenue available after application of the Pledged
Revenue to the payment of Series 2015 Senior Bonds.
The Indenture requires that, so long as any Series 2015 Senior Bonds are outstanding, the District must
transfer all Pledged Revenue to the Senior Obligation Trustee for the payment of Senior Obligations. Any
Pledged Revenue not needed to pay Series 2015 Senior Bonds, or to replenish the Reserve Fund or
fund the Surplus Fund, are required to be deposited in the Subordinate Bond Fund and be applied to the
payment of the Subordinate Bonds. When the Series 2015 Senior Bonds are no longer outstanding, the
District is required to deposit all Pledged Revenue with the Trustee for the payment of the Subordinate
Bonds.
The Series 2018B Subordinate Limited Bonds constitute Subordinate Obligations under the 2015 Senior
Indenture, and the Series 2015 Senior Bonds constitute Senior Obligations under the Indenture. The
moneys constituting the Subordinate Pledged Revenue, which are pledged to the payment of the Bonds,
are derived from the same sources of revenues as the moneys pledged to the payment of the 2015
Senior Indenture to pay the Series 2015 Senior Bonds, and the lien thereon is junior and subordinate in
all respects to the lien of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds and any other Senior Obligations which may be
issued by the Issuing District in the future.
Principal and interest payments will be as cash flow is available.

10
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Debt and Leases – (continued)
The following is analysis of anticipated changes in the District’s long-term obligations for the years ending
December 31, 2021 and 2022.
Anticipated
Balance -

Balance -

December 31,

December 31,

2020

Additions

Retirements

2021

Subordinate Special Revenue
Bonds, Series 2014A

$

665,293

$

-

$

-

$

665,293

Subordinate Special Revenue
Bonds, Series 2014B

914,350

-

-

914,350

130,939

63,699

-

194,638

287,767

96,169

-

383,936

10,645,000

-

120,000

10,525,000

Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Special Rev Bonds, Series 2014A
Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Special Rev Bonds, Series 2014B
Limited Tax G.O. and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015
Bond Issue Discount - Series 2015

(31,299)

-

(1,807)

(29,492)

Subordinate Limited Tax G.O. and
Special Revenue Refunding,
Bonds Series 2018B
Bond Issue Discount - Series 2018B

5,700,000

-

(149,816)

-

-

(10,461)

5,700,000
(139,355)

Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Limited Tax G.O. and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2018
Total

1,062,385
$ 19,224,619

11

516,956
$

676,824

$

96,750

1,482,591

204,482

$ 19,696,961
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Debt and Leases – (continued)
Anticipated

Anticipated

Balance -

Balance -

December 31,

December 31,

2021

Additions

Retirements

2022

Subordinate Special Revenue
Bonds, Series 2014A

$

665,293

$

-

$

-

$

665,293

Subordinate Special Revenue
Bonds, Series 2014B

914,350

-

-

914,350

194,638

68,794

-

263,432

383,936

103,863

-

487,799

10,525,000

-

140,000

10,385,000

Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Special Rev Bonds, Series 2014A
Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Special Rev Bonds, Series 2014B
Limited Tax G.O. and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015
Bond Issue Discount - Series 2015

(29,492)

-

(1,786)

(27,706)

Subordinate Limited Tax G.O. and
Special Revenue Refunding,
Bonds Series 2018B
Bond Issue Discount - Series 2018B

5,700,000

-

(139,355)

-

-

(11,166)

5,700,000
(128,189)

Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Limited Tax G.O. and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2018
Total

1,482,591
$ 19,696,961

547,688
$

720,346

$

519,000

1,511,280

646,048

$ 19,771,259

The District has no capital or operating leases.
Reserve Funds
Emergency Reserve
The District has provided for an Emergency Reserve fund equal to at least 3% of fiscal year spending for
2022, as defined under TABOR.
Debt Service Reserves
The District maintains a Debt Service Reserve as required with the issuance of the Series 2015 Bonds.

This information is an integral part of the accompanying budget.

12
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY

$10,830,000
Limited Tax General Obligation
and Special Revenue Bonds
Series 2015, Dated December 17, 2015
Interest Rate of 5.375% Payable June 1 and
December 1, Principal Due December 1
Principal
Interest
Total

Year Ended December 31,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
2045

$

140,000
150,000
170,000
180,000
205,000
215,000
245,000
255,000
285,000
300,000
330,000
350,000
385,000
405,000
440,000
465,000
505,000
535,000
580,000
610,000
660,000
695,000
750,000
1,670,000

$

565,718
558,194
550,131
540,994
531,318
520,300
508,744
495,575
481,869
466,550
450,425
432,688
413,875
393,181
371,413
347,763
322,769
295,625
266,869
235,693
202,906
167,431
130,075
89,763

$

705,718
708,194
720,131
720,994
736,318
735,300
753,744
750,575
766,869
766,550
780,425
782,688
798,875
798,181
811,413
812,763
827,769
830,625
846,869
845,693
862,906
862,431
880,075
1,759,763

TOTAL

$

10,525,000

$

9,339,869

$

19,864,869

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
13
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
Arapahoe County, Colorado
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Board of Directors
Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2
Arapahoe County, Colorado
Independent Auditor’s Report
Opinions
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each
major fund of Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2 (the “District”), as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of
Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2 as of December 31, 2021, and the respective changes
in financial position and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Basis for Opinions
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP),
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statements date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

I
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not
absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control—related matters that we identified during the audit.
Other Matters
Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. Our opinions on the basic financial statements is not affected by
this missing information.
II
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as a whole. The supplementary
information as listed in the table of contents is presented for the purposes of legal compliance and
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplementary
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, such information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
The other information, as listed in the table of contents, has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.
In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.
of the other informat

Wipfli
Wi
fli LLP
Lakewood, Colorado
July 27, 2022
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments - Restricted
Receivable from County Treasurer
Due from Other Districts
PIF Receivable
Prepaid Insurance
Property Taxes Receivable
Capital Assets, Net
Total Assets

$

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Unearned Maintenance Fees
Domestic Water Fee Credit Payable
Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More than One Year
Total Liabilities

298,393
1,994,401
5,904
2,677
5,350
3,321
1,177,935
2,828,594
6,316,575
55,389
1,593
17,066
47,143
140,000
19,556,961
19,818,152

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property Tax Revenue
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

1,177,935
1,177,935

NET POSITION
Restricted For:
Emergency Reserves
Unrestricted

23,100
(14,702,612)

Total Net Position

$ (14,679,512)

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

(1)
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Expenses
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Intergovernmental
Interest and Related Costs
on Long-Term Debt
Total Governmental Activities

$

682,350
16,513

$

438,528
-

1,286,472
$

1,985,335

$

$

438,528

276,374

Capital
Grants and
Contributions

$

$

276,374

3,014,531
-

$

3,014,531

Governmental
Activities

$

(243,822)
3,274,392
(1,286,472)
1,744,098

GENERAL REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Public Improvement Fees
Net Investment Income
Other Revenue
Total General Revenues

1,049,636
72,340
42,005
1,157
100
1,165,238

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

2,909,336

Net Position - Beginning of Year
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Program Revenues
Operating
Grants and
Contributions

Charges
for
Services

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Net Position

(2)

(17,588,848)
$ (14,679,512)
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Special
Revenue

General

Total
Governmental
Funds

Debt
Service

ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments - Restricted
Receivable from County Treasurer
Due from Other Districts
PIF Receivable
Prepaid Insurance
Property Taxes Receivable
Total Assets

$

$

119,761
6,800
1,181
1,742
3,321
235,574
368,379

$

16,352
16,352

$

$

178,632
16,300
194,932

$

38,447
1,593
17,066
57,106

$

$

1,971,301
4,723
935
5,350
942,361
2,924,670

$

590
590

$

$

298,393
1,994,401
5,904
2,677
5,350
3,321
1,177,935
3,487,981

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Unearned Maintenance Fees
Domestic Water Fee Credit Payable
Total Liabilities

$

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property Tax Revenue
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Expenses
Restricted for:
Emergency Reserves
Debt Service
Committed for:
Operations
Unassigned:
General Government
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

$

55,389
1,593
17,066
74,048

235,574
235,574

-

942,361
942,361

1,177,935
1,177,935

3,321

-

-

3,321

6,800
-

16,300
-

1,981,719

23,100
1,981,719

-

121,526

-

121,526

106,332
116,453

137,826

1,981,719

106,332
2,235,998

368,379

$

194,932

$

2,924,670

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current
period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.
Capital Assets, Net

2,828,594

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and
accrued interest, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not recorded as liabilities in
the funds.
Bonds Payable - Series 2014A
Bonds Payable - Series 2014B
Bonds Payable - Series 2015
Bonds Payable - Series 2018B
Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable - Series 2014A
Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable - Series 2014B
Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable - Series 2015
Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable - Series 2018B

(665,293)
(914,350)
(10,495,508)
(5,560,645)
(194,638)
(383,936)
(47,143)
(1,482,591)

Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

$

(3)

(14,679,512)
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Net Investment Income
Other Revenue
Transfer from District No. 1
Maintenance Fees
Domestic Water Fees
Administrative Fees
Public Improvement Fees
Transfer from District No. 3
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
General:
Accounting
Audit
County Treasurer's Fees
Dues and Memberships
District Management
Legal Services
Transfer to District No. 1
Contingency
Operations:
Insurance and Bonds
Snow Removal
Trash
Electricity and Utility Inspections
Irrigation Repairs
Pet Waste Removal
Property Management
Billing Services
Landscape Maintenance
Landscape Repairs
Irrigation Water
Domestic Water
Debt Service:
Bond Interest - Series 2015
Bond Interest - Series 2018B
Bond Principal - Series 2015
Paying Agent Fees
PIF Collection Fees
Total Expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

General
$

209,916
14,467
103
100
224,586

$

$

Total
Governmental
Funds

Debt
Service

104,091
401,774
32,614
4,140
542,619

$

839,720
57,873
1,054
42,005
172,283
1,112,935

$

1,049,636
72,340
1,157
100
104,091
401,774
32,614
4,140
42,005
172,283
1,880,140

37,039
3,000
3,150
836
26,698
18,391
16,513
2,506

5,161

12,602
-

37,039
3,000
15,752
836
26,698
18,391
16,513
7,667

-

15,997
66,015
41,616
1,412
13,313
8,463
26,940
31,453
78,972
25,340
57,497
32,614

-

15,997
66,015
41,616
1,412
13,313
8,463
26,940
31,453
78,972
25,340
57,497
32,614

108,133

404,793

572,169
96,750
120,000
11,100
2,047
814,668

572,169
96,750
120,000
11,100
2,047
1,327,594

116,453

137,826

298,267

552,546

-

-

1,683,452

1,683,452

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

Special
Revenue

116,453

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

(4)

$

137,826

$

1,981,719

$

2,235,998
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

$

552,546

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement of activities,
capital outlay is not reported as an expenditure. However, the statement of activities will
report as depreciation expense, the allocation of cost of any depreciable asset over the
estimated useful life of the asset.
Transfer of Capital Assets from Other Entities
Depreciation Expense

3,014,531
(185,937)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Bond Principal Payment - Series 2015
Bond Discount Amortization - Series 2015
Bond Discount Amortization - Series 2018B

120,000
(1,807)
(10,461)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.
Accrued Interest on Long-Term Obligations - Change in Liability
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

(579,536)
$

(5)

2,909,336
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE –
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Net Investment Income
Other Revenue
Total Revenues

Original
and Final
Budget
$

EXPENDITURES
Accounting
Audit
County Treasurer's Fees
Dues and Memberships
District Management
Legal Services
Transfer to District No. 1
Contingency
Total Expenditures
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

$

(6)

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

Actual
Amounts

209,914
14,694
100
224,708

$

209,916
14,467
103
100
224,586

$

2
(227)
3
100
(122)

35,000
3,500
3,149
500
35,000
60,000
34,500
5,351
177,000

37,039
3,000
3,150
836
26,698
18,391
16,513
2,506
108,133

(2,039)
500
(1)
(336)
8,302
41,609
17,987
2,845
68,867

47,708

116,453

68,745

-

-

-

47,708

$

116,453

$

68,745
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE –
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

REVENUES
Transfer from District No. 1
Transfer from District No. 3 - Condos'
Maintenance Fees
Maintenance Fees
Domestic Water Fees
Administrative Fees
Total Revenues

Original
and Final
Budget
$

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

Actual
Amounts
-

$

104,091

$

104,091

1,218
367,500
40,000
4,140
412,858

401,774
32,614
4,140
542,619

(1,218)
34,274
(7,386)
129,761

EXPENDITURES
Insurance and Bonds
Snow Removal
Trash
Electricity and Utility Inspections
Irrigation Repairs
Pet Waste Removal
Property Management
Billing Services
Landscape Maintenance
Landscape Repairs
Irrigation Water
Domestic Water
Detention Pond
Contingency
Total Expenditures

15,000
70,000
50,000
3,000
25,000
7,200
35,000
18,000
80,000
25,000
40,000
40,000
14,000
7,800
430,000

15,997
66,015
41,616
1,412
13,313
8,463
26,940
31,453
78,972
25,340
57,497
32,614
5,161
404,793

(997)
3,985
8,384
1,588
11,687
(1,263)
8,060
(13,453)
1,028
(340)
(17,497)
7,386
14,000
2,639
25,207

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

(17,142)

137,826

154,968

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

56,610
$

(7)

39,468

$

137,826

(56,610)
$

98,358
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 1

DEFINITION OF REPORTING ENTITY
Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2 (the District), a quasi-municipal corporation and
political subdivision of the state of Colorado, which was organized by order and decree of
the District Court for Court for Arapahoe County on February 18, 2014. The District, along
with Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 3 operate as Financing Districts together with
Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 1, which serves as the Coordinating District in a
triple district structure (collectively, all three districts are referred to as the Districts). The
District and District No. 3 provide for the funding of infrastructure improvements being
administered by District No. 1. The Districts undertake their functions pursuant to an
Amended and Restated Consolidated Service Plan (the Service Plan) dated September 3,
2013. The service area of the Districts is located entirely within the City of Littleton,
Arapahoe County, Colorado.
The District was established to provide financing for the construction, installation, and
operation of public improvements, including water, sanitation, streets, safety protection,
storm drainage, covenant enforcement and design review services, and parks and
recreation facilities.
The District follows the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) accounting
pronouncements which provide guidance for determining which governmental activities,
organizations and functions should be included within the financial reporting entity. GASB
pronouncements set forth the financial accountability of a governmental organization’s
elected governing body as the basic criterion for including a possible component
governmental organization in a primary government's legal entity. Financial accountability
includes, but is not limited to, appointment of a voting majority of the organization’s
governing body, ability to impose its will on the organization, a potential for the organization
to provide specific financial benefits or burdens and fiscal dependency.
The District is not financially accountable for any other organization, nor is the District a
component unit of any other primary governmental entity. On November 24, 2020, the
Districts entered into intergovernmental agreements for the separation (see Note 6 –
Agreements).
The District has no employees, and all operations and administrative functions are
contracted.

NOTE 2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The more significant accounting policies of the District are described as follows:
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the
statement of activities. These financial statements include all of the activities of the District.
The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities are normally supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues.

(8)
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The statement of net position reports all financial and capital resources of the District. The
difference between the assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflow
of resources of the District is reported as net position.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct and indirect
expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program
revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for the governmental funds. Major individual
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. The
major source of revenue susceptible to accrual is operations fees. All other revenue items
are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District.
The District has determined that WIP Littleton Village LLC (Developer) advances are not
considered as revenue susceptible to accrual. Expenditures, other than interest on longterm obligations, are recorded when the liability is incurred or the long-term obligation is
due.
The District reports the following major governmental funds:
The General Fund is the District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.
The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for revenues earned and expenditures
incurred in connection with the direct and indirect costs of facilities and maintenance.
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on long-term debt of the governmental funds.
(9)
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Budgets
In accordance with the State Budget Law, the District’s Board of Directors holds public
hearings in the fall each year to approve the budget and appropriate the funds for the
ensuing year. The appropriation is at the total fund expenditures and other financing uses
level and lapses at year-end. The District’s Board of Directors can modify the budget by line
item within the total appropriation without notification. The appropriation can only be
modified upon completion of notification and publication requirements. The budget includes
each fund on its basis of accounting unless otherwise indicated.
The District amended its annual budget for the year ended December 31, 2021.
Pooled Cash and Investments
The District follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds to maximize
investment earnings. Except when required by trust or other agreements, all cash is
deposited to and disbursed from a single bank or investment account. Cash in excess of
immediate operating requirements is pooled for deposit and investment flexibility.
Investment earnings are allocated periodically to the participating funds based upon each
fund’s average equity balance in the total cash.
Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable
governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the District as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of
donation.
Capital assets which are anticipated to be conveyed to other governmental entities are
recorded as construction in progress, and are not included in the calculation of net
investment in capital assets.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized. Improvements that will be
dedicated to other governmental entities are not depreciated. Improvements to be owned by
the District are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related
fixed assets, as applicable. Depreciation expense has been computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated economic useful lives:
Parks
Drainage Tract

20 Years
20 Years

(10)
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NOTE 2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property Taxes
Property taxes are levied by the District’s Board of Directors. The levy is based on assessed
valuations determined by the County Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The
levy is normally set by December 15 by certification to the County Commissioners to put the
tax lien on the individual properties as of January 1 of the following year. The County
Treasurer collects equal installments, at the taxpayer’s election, in February and June.
Delinquent taxpayers are notified in August and generally sales of the tax liens on
delinquent properties are held in November or December. The County Treasurer remits the
taxes collected monthly to the District.
Property taxes, net of estimated uncollectible taxes, are recorded initially as deferred inflow
of resources in the year they are levied and measurable. The property tax revenues are
recorded as revenue in the year they are available or collected.
Amortization
Bond Discount
In the government-wide financial statements, bond premiums and discounts are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as expenditures.
Deferred Inflows of Resources
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will
not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has one
item that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, property tax revenue,
is deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amount becomes
available.
Equity
Net Position
For government-wide presentation purposes when both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, it is the District’s practice to use restricted resources first,
then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

(11)
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NOTE 2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Equity (Continued)
Fund Balance
Fund balance for governmental funds should be reported in classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the
specific purposes for which spending can occur. Governmental funds report up to five
classifications of fund balance: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned. Because circumstances differ among governments, not every government or
every governmental fund will present all of these components. The following classifications
describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:
Nonspendable Fund Balance – The portion of fund balance that cannot be spent
because it is either not in spendable form (such as prepaid amounts or inventory) or
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
Restricted Fund Balance – The portion of fund balance that is constrained to being used
for a specific purpose by external parties (such as bondholders), constitutional
provisions, or enabling legislation.
Committed Fund Balance – The portion of fund balance that can only be used for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the government’s
highest level of decision-making authority, the board of directors. The constraint may be
removed or changed only through formal action of the board of directors.
Assigned Fund Balance – The portion of fund balance that is constrained by the
government’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but is neither restricted nor
committed. Intent is expressed by the board of directors to be used for a specific
purpose. Constraints imposed on the use of assigned amounts are more easily removed
or modified than those imposed on amounts that are classified as committed.
Unassigned Fund Balance – The residual portion of fund balance that does not meet any
of the criteria described above.
If more than one classification of fund balance is available for use when an expenditure is
incurred, it is the District’s practice to use the most restrictive classification first.

NOTE 3

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Cash and investments as of December 31, 2021, are classified in the accompanying
financial statements as follows:
Statement of Net Position:
Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments - Restricted
Total Cash and Investments

$
$

(12)

298,393
1,994,401
2,292,794
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NOTE 3

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Cash and investments as of December 31, 2021, consist of the following:
Deposits with Financial Institutions
Investments
Total Cash and Investments

$
$

205,177
2,087,617
2,292,794

Deposits with Financial Institutions
The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local
government deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by state
regulators. Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized.
The eligible collateral is determined by the PDPA. PDPA allows the institution to create a
single collateral pool for all public funds. The pool for all the uninsured public deposits as a
group is to be maintained by another institution or held in trust. The market value of the
collateral must be at least 102% of the aggregate uninsured deposits.
The State Commissioners for banks and financial services are required by statute to monitor
the naming of eligible depositories and reporting of the uninsured deposits and assets
maintained in the collateral pools.
At December 31, 2021, the District’s cash deposits had a bank and carrying balance of
$205,177.
Investments
The District has not adopted a formal investment policy; however, the District follows state
statutes regarding investments.
The District generally limits its concentration of investments to those noted with an
asterisk (*) below, which are believed to have minimal credit risk, minimal interest rate risk,
and no foreign currency risk. Additionally, the District is not subject to concentration risk or
investment custodial risk disclosure requirements for investments that are in the possession
of another party.
Colorado revised statutes limit investment maturities to five years or less unless formally
approved by the board of directors. Such actions are generally associated with a debt
service reserve or sinking fund requirements.

(13)
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NOTE 3

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Investments (Continued)
Colorado statutes specify investment instruments meeting defined rating and risk criteria in
which local governments may invest which include:
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
*

Obligations of the United States, certain U.S. government agency securities, and
securities of the World Bank
General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities
Certain certificates of participation
Certain securities lending agreements
Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks
Commercial paper
Written repurchase agreements and certain reverse repurchase agreements
collateralized by certain authorized securities
Certain money market funds
Guaranteed investment contracts
Local government investment pools

As of December 31, 2021, the District had the following investments:
Investment
Colorado Surplus Asset Fund
Trust (CSAFE)

Maturity
Weighted-Average
Under 60 Days

Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset
Trust (COLOTRUST)
Total

Weighted-Average
Under 60 Days

Amount
$

1,968,048

$

119,569
2,087,617

CSAFE
The District invested in the Colorado Surplus Asset Fund Trust (CSAFE) (the Trust), which
is an investment vehicle established by state statute for local government entities to pool
surplus assets. The State Securities Commissioner administers and enforces all State
statutes governing the Trust. The Trust is similar to a money market fund, with each share
valued at $1.00. CSAFE may invest in U.S. Treasury securities, repurchase agreements
collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities, certain money market funds, and highest rated
commercial paper. A designated custodial bank serves as custodian for CSAFE’s portfolio
pursuant to a custodian agreement. The custodian acts as safekeeping agent for CSAFE’s
investment portfolio and provides services as the depository in connection with direct
investments and withdrawals. The custodian’s internal records segregate investments
owned by CSAFE. CSAFE is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. CSAFE records its
investments at amortized cost and the District records its investments in CSAFE at net asset
value determined by amortized cost method. There are no unfunded commitments, the
redemption frequency is daily, and there is no redemption notice period.

(14)
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NOTE 3

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
COLOTRUST
The District invested in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST)
(the Trust), an investment vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado to
pool surplus funds. The State Securities Commissioner administers and enforces all State
statutes governing the Trust. The Trust currently offers three portfolios – COLOTRUST
PRIME, COLOTRUST PLUS+, and COLOTRUST EDGE.
COLOTRUST PRIME and COLOTRUST PLUS+, which operate similarly to a money market
fund and each share is equal in value to $1.00, offer daily liquidity. Both portfolios may
invest in U.S. Treasury securities and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S.
Treasury securities. COLOTRUST PLUS+ may also invest in certain obligations of U.S.
government agencies, highest rated commercial paper, and any security allowed under CRS
24-75-601.
COLOTRUST EDGE, a variable Net Asset Value (NAV) Local Government Investment Pool,
offers weekly liquidity and is managed to approximate a $10.00 transactional share price.
COLOTRUST EDGE may invest in securities authorized by CRS 24-75-601, including U.S.
Treasury securities, repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities,
certain obligations of U.S. government agencies, highest rated commercial paper, and any
security allowed under CRS 24-75-601.
A designated custodial bank serves as custodian for the Trust’s portfolios pursuant to a
custodian agreement. The custodian acts as safekeeping agent for the Trust’s investment
portfolios and provides services as the depository in connection with direct investments and
withdrawals. The custodian’s internal records segregate investments owned by the Trust.
COLOTRUST is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. COLOTRUST records its investments at
fair value and the District records its investment in COLOTRUST at net asset value as
determined by fair value. There are no unfunded commitments, the redemption frequency is
daily or weekly, and there is no redemption notice period.

(15)
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NOTE 4

CAPITAL ASSETS
An analysis of the changes in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2021 follows:
Balance December 31,
2020
Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated:
Central Park
Boulevard Park
North Drainage Tract/Open Space
Total Capital Assets, Being
Depreciated

$

-

$

-

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Central Park
Boulevard Park
North Drainage Tract/Open Space
Total Accumulated
Depreciation
Capital Assets, Net

Increases

$

Balance December 31,
2021

Decreases

2,270,546
511,964
936,246

$

-

3,718,756

$

-

2,270,546
511,964
936,246
3,718,756

-

(540,180)
(123,723)
(226,259)

-

(540,180)
(123,723)
(226,259)

-

(890,162)

-

(890,162)

-

$

2,828,594

$

-

$

2,828,594

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows:
Governmental Activities:

$

185,937

As a result of the Termination of District Administrative Services Agreement, effective
January 1, 2021 (as discussed in Note 7), District No. 1 has transferred all of its capital
assets to the District and District No. 3 according to their boundaries.

(16)
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NOTE 5

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
The following is an analysis of changes in the District’s long-term obligations for the year
ended December 31, 2021:
Balance December 31,
2020
Bonds Payable:
Limited Tax G.O. and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015
Bond Issue Discount - Series 2015
Subordinate Limited Tax G.O. and
Special Revenue Refunding,
Bonds Series 2018B
Bond Issue Discount - Series 2018B
Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Limited Tax G.O. and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2018B
Subtotal of Bonds Payable
Bonds From Direct Borrowings
and Direct Placements:
Subordinate Special Revenue
Bonds, Series 2014A
Subordinate Special Revenue
Bonds, Series 2014B
Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Special Rev Bonds, Series 2014A
Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Special Rev Bonds, Series 2014B
Subtotal of Bonds From Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements
Total Long-Term Obligations

$ 10,645,000
(31,299)

Additions

$

5,700,000
(149,816)

Retirements

-

$

-

Balance December 31,
2021

120,000
(1,807)

$ 10,525,000
(29,492)

(10,461)

5,700,000
(139,355)

Due Within
One Year

$

140,000
-

-

1,062,385
17,226,270

516,956
516,956

96,750
204,482

1,482,591
17,538,744

140,000

665,293

-

-

665,293

-

914,350

-

-

914,350

-

130,939

63,699

-

194,638

-

287,767

96,169

-

383,936

-

1,998,349

159,868

-

2,158,217

-

204,482

$ 19,696,961

$ 19,224,619

$

676,824

$

$

140,000

The detail of the District's long-term obligation is as follows:
Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2015
On December 17, 2015, the District issued Limited Tax General Obligation and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015, in the amount of $10,830,000. The proceeds from the sale of
the Series 2015 Senior Bonds are used for the purposes of (i) refunding a portion of the
District’s currently outstanding Subordinate Special Revenue Bond, Series 2014A;
(ii) providing capitalized interest for the Series 2015 Senior Bonds; (iii) funding a Reserve
Fund securing the Series 2015 Senior Bonds; and, (iv) paying costs of issuance of the
Series 2015 Senior Bonds. The Series 2015 Senior Bonds bear interest at 5.375%, payable
semi-annually on June 1 and December 1, beginning on June 1, 2016. Annual mandatory
sinking fund principal payments are due on December 1, beginning on December 1, 2019.
The Series 2015 Senior Bonds mature on December 1, 2045, and are subject to optional
redemption as described in the Indenture.

(17)
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 (Continued)
The Series 2015 Senior Bonds are secured by and payable solely from Pledged Revenue,
which includes property taxes derived from the Required Mill Levy (for the District and
District No. 3 according to the Capital Pledge Agreement) net of the cost of collection,
Specific Ownership Taxes attributable to the Required Mill Levy, Pledged PIF revenues,
payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT revenues) (if any), and any other legally available moneys
of the District which the District deposits with the Trustee for application as Pledged
Revenue. The Series 2015 Senior Bonds are also secured by amounts held in the Reserve
Fund and amounts accumulated in the Surplus Fund, if any. In accordance with the
Indenture, amounts on deposit in the Surplus Fund are to be released to the District when
the Series 2015 Senior Bonds are defeased or paid in full.
Pledged Revenue that is not needed to pay debt service on the Series 2015 Senior Bonds in
any year will be deposited to and held in the Surplus Fund, up to the Maximum Surplus
Amount of 10% of par value of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds. Under the Indenture, the
Surplus Fund is terminated upon defeasance or payment in full of the Series 2015 Senior
Bonds. The District has acknowledged that State Law places certain restrictions on the use
of money derived from the Required Mill Levy.
The Series 2015 Senior Bonds principal and interest will mature as follows:
Year Ending December 31,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2041
2042-2045
Total

Principal
140,000
150,000
170,000
180,000
205,000
1,300,000
1,910,000
2,695,000
3,775,000
$ 10,525,000

$

$

$

Interest
565,718
558,194
550,131
540,994
531,318
2,473,038
2,061,582
1,468,719
590,175
9,339,869

$

$

Total
705,718
708,194
720,131
720,994
736,318
3,773,038
3,971,582
4,163,719
4,365,175
19,864,869

Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2018B
On September 6, 2018, the District issued Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation and
Special Revenue Bonds, (Series 2018B Bonds), in the amount of $5,700,000. Proceeds
from the sale of the Series 2018B Bonds were used for the purposes of (i) refunding a
portion of the 2014A Bonds and (ii) paying costs in connection with the issuance of the
Series 2018B Bonds.
The Series 2018B Bonds were issued at the rate of 7.625% per annum and payable
annually on December 15, beginning December 15, 2018, from, and to the extent of,
Subordinate Pledged Revenue, subject to limitations of the Indenture, and mature on
December 15, 2028. Unpaid interest on the Series 2018B Bonds compounds annually on
each December 15 at the rate then borne by the Series 2018B Bonds. In the event any
amount due and owing on the Series 2018B Bonds remains outstanding on December 15,
2055, such amount shall be deemed discharged and no longer be due and outstanding.
(18)
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NOTE 5

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2018B
(Continued)
The Series 2018B Bonds are secured by and payable solely from Subordinate Pledged
Revenue, which is that portion of Pledged Revenue available after application of the
Pledged Revenue to the payment of Series 2015 Senior Bonds.
The Indenture requires that, so long as any Series 2015 Senior Bonds are outstanding, the
District must transfer all Pledged Revenue to the Senior Obligation Trustee for the payment
of Senior Obligations. Any Pledged Revenue not needed to pay Series 2015 Senior Bonds,
or to replenish the Reserve Fund or fund the Surplus Fund, are required to be deposited in
the Subordinate Bond Fund and be applied to the payment of the Subordinate Bonds. When
the Series 2015 Senior Bonds are no longer outstanding, the District is required to deposit
all Pledged Revenue with the Trustee for the payment of the Subordinate Bonds.
The Series 2018B Bonds constitute Subordinate Obligations under the 2015 Senior
Indenture, and the Series 2015 Senior Bonds constitute Senior Obligations under the
Indenture. The moneys constituting the Subordinate Pledged Revenue, which are pledged
to the payment of the Series 2018B Bonds, are derived from the same sources of revenues
as the moneys pledged to the payment of the 2015 Senior Indenture to pay the Series 2015
Senior Bonds, and the lien thereon is junior and subordinate in all respects to the lien of the
Series 2015 Senior Bonds and any other Senior Obligations which may be issued by the
District in the future.
Principal and interest payments will be made as cash flow is available.
Series 2014 Special Revenue Bonds
On June 4, 2014, the District authorized the issuance of Special Revenue Bonds, Series
2014A (the Bonds) in the aggregate principal amount of up to $12,165,000. The principal
amount of the Bonds deemed issued from time to time shall equal the amount of
Acknowledged Advances made under the Construction Funding Loan Agreement pursuant
to which the WIP Littleton Village, LLC (the Developer) advances the funds to cover capital
costs and such advances are converted to bond proceeds through the process of Bond
Counsel issuing an opinion on each Acknowledged Advance. The principal balance of the
Bonds shall bear interest at the rate of 8.00% per annum and any interest not paid when
due compounds annually at such rate, payable semi-annually on each June 15 and
December 15, commencing June 15, 2015, and shall mature on December 15, 2044. To the
extent interest on the Bonds is not paid when due, such interest shall compound annually,
on each December 15. To the extent principal of the Bonds is not paid when due, such
principal shall remain outstanding until paid. The District also issued Taxable Subordinate
Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2014B (the Subordinate Bonds) in the authorized principal
amount of up to $3,335,000, in order to provide for the repayment of Acknowledged
Advances in excess of $12,165,000.The Subordinate Bonds shall bear the same interest
rate of 8.00% and to be payable only after the payment in full of the Bonds. Both Series
2014A and 2014B Bonds are subordinate to Series 2015 and Series 2018 Bonds.
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Series 2014 Special Revenue Bonds (Continued)
The Bonds are secured and payable from the Pledged Revenue, consisting of monies
derived by the District from the following sources, net of collection costs: 1) property tax
revenues, 2) specific ownership tax revenues, 3) privately imposed public improvement fees
(PIF revenues), and 4) any other legally available monies which the District determines to
credit to the Bond Fund. Pledged Revenue for the repayment on the Bonds also includes
revenues resulting from District No. 3’s imposition of the District No. 3 Required Mill Levy.
The Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the District, as a
whole or in part, on any date thereafter, upon payment of par and accrued interest, without
redemption premium. The Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption in part on
December 15 of each year, commencing December 15, 2015 to the extent of monies on
deposit.
Due to the unknown timing of bond proceeds, debt amortization schedules from the District’s
Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A, and Taxable Subordinate Special Revenue Bonds,
Series 2014B are not available. Principal and interest payments will be made as cash flow is
available.
The Series 2014A Bonds were partially refunded by the Series 2015 Bonds and the Series
2018B Bonds, as described in the following section. The Series 2014B Bonds were partially
discharged by a contribution from the Developer during the issuance of the Series 2018B
Bonds.
Authorized Debt
On November 5, 2013, the District’s voters authorized total indebtedness of $520,000,000
for construction of public improvements and operating and maintenance expenditures and
debt refunding. At December 31, 2021, the District had authorized but unissued
indebtedness in the following amounts allocated for the following purposes:
Amount

Streets

Authorization

Authorization

Authorization

Authorization

November 5,

Used

Used

Used

Used

But

2013

Series 2014A

Series 2014B

Series 2015

Series 2018

Unissued

$

40,000,000

$ 10,091,601

40,000,000

1,609,323

429,380

-

-

37,961,297

Sanitation

40,000,000

464,076

636,837

-

-

38,899,087

Parks and Recreation

40,000,000

-

-

-

-

40,000,000

Public Transportation

40,000,000

-

-

-

-

40,000,000

Television Relay

40,000,000

-

-

-

-

40,000,000

Mosquito Control

40,000,000

-

-

-

-

40,000,000

Security Services

40,000,000

-

-

-

-

40,000,000

Traffic and Safety

40,000,000

-

-

-

-

40,000,000

Fire Protection

40,000,000

-

-

-

-

40,000,000

Operations and Maintenance

40,000,000

-

-

-

-

40,000,000

Refundings

40,000,000

-

-

-

5,700,000

34,300,000

Total

40,000,000

-

$ 520,000,000

$ 12,165,000

(20)

$

1,318,760

$

-

-

10,830,000

2,384,977

$ 10,830,000

$

$

-

Authorized

Water

Intergovernmental Agreements

$

Authorized

$

28,589,639

-

29,170,000

5,700,000

$ 488,920,023
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NOTE 5

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Authorized Debt (Continued)
Pursuant to the Service Plan, the District, jointly with District Nos. 1 and 3, are permitted to
issue bond indebtedness of up to $40,000,000.
In the future, the District may issue a portion or all of the remaining authorized but unissued
general obligation debt for purposes of providing public improvements to support
development as it occurs within the District’s service area.

NOTE 6

NET POSITION
The District has net position consisting of two components – restricted and unrestricted.
The restricted component of net position includes assets that are restricted for use either
externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments,
or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The District had
a restricted net position at December 31, 2021, as follows:
Restricted Net Position:
Emergency Reserves
Total Restricted Net Position

$
$

23,100
23,100

The unrestricted component of net position is the net amounts of assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the
determination of the net investments in capital assets or the restricted component of net
position.
The District has a deficit in unrestricted net position. This deficit amount is a result of the
District being responsible for the repayment of bonds issued for public improvement, a
portion of which have been conveyed and/or will be conveyed to other governmental
entities.
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NOTE 7

AGREEMENTS
Amended and Restated Funding and Reimbursement Agreement (Operations and
Maintenance)
District No. 1 entered into a Funding and Reimbursement Agreement (Capital and
Operations Maintenance) with the Developer dated as of October 31, 2013 (the Prior
Funding Agreement). Pursuant to the Prior Funding Agreement, the Developer agreed to
loan up to $750,000 to District No. 1 in one or in a series of installments through
December 31, 2014, to be used for costs including capital needs as well as operations and
maintenance requirements. District No. 1 was to determine from time to time (but not more
often than monthly) the amount required to fund budgeted expenditures of District No. 1,
and was to notify the Developer of the required amount at least ten (10) days prior to the
beginning of each month, and the Developer was obligated to fund such required amounts
by the beginning of the next month. Simple interest accrued on amounts advanced at the
rate of 8% per annum calculated from the date of each advance. District No. 1 intended to
reimburse the Developer for amounts advanced from bond proceeds, ad valorem taxes,
fees or other legally available revenues, net of any debt service or current operations and
maintenance costs. The term for repayment was 20 years from the date of the Prior Funding
Agreement, unless otherwise agreed.
On December 4, 2015, the Prior Funding Agreement was amended, restated, and
superseded by the Funding and Reimbursement Agreement (Operations and Maintenance)
(the Amended and Restated Funding Agreement), pursuant to which the Developer has
agreed to loan funds to District No. 1 in an amount up to $100,000 per year for five years
through December 31, 2020, which funds are to be loaned to District No. 1 solely for
operations and maintenance costs. Funds advanced by the Developer to District No. 1 for
operations and maintenance costs under the Prior Funding Agreement are to be reimbursed
to the Developer pursuant to the terms of the Amended and Restated Funding Agreement.
The District and Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 3 both acknowledged the
Amended and Restated Funding Agreement, stating that each were obligated to provide
revenues from the properties within the boundaries of each respective district to fund the
obligation to reimburse the Developer for advances made to District No. 1 under the
Amended and Restated Funding Agreement.
Pursuant to the Construction Funding Loan Agreement (described below), the capital
component of Developer advances in the amount of $767,889 made under the Prior
Funding Agreement have been recorded as part of the principal amount of the 2014 Bonds
issued by the District, and there is no further obligation of the Developer to fund capital costs
under the Amended and Restated Funding Agreement, but rather future funding obligations
of the Developer under the Amended and Restated Funding Agreement are limited to
operations and maintenance costs, with capital costs funding being handled through the
Construction Funding Loan Agreement.

(22)

62

LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021

NOTE 7

AGREEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Construction Funding Loan Agreement
The District, together with District Nos. 1 and 3, entered into a Construction Funding Loan
Agreement with the Developer dated as of June 6, 2014 (the Construction Funding Loan
Agreement), whereby the Developer agreed to advance funds to District No. 1 for capital
costs of public infrastructure being constructed by District No. 1. Additionally, the parties
also agreed that any amounts funded for capital costs under the Prior Funding Agreement,
prior to the date of the Construction Funding Loan Agreement, would be recognized as
advances under the Construction Funding Loan Agreement and not the Prior Funding
Agreement.
The Construction Funding Loan Agreement was amended by a First Amendment on
January 27, 2015, a Second Amendment on December 2, 2015, a Third Amendment on
November 22, 2016, a Fourth Amendment on May 23, 2017, and a Fifth Amendment on
August 14, 2018. Pursuant to the Construction Funding Loan Agreement, as amended, the
Developer agreed to make advances in one or more installments in the maximum loan
amount of $17,000,000 through June 1, 2018. A Sixth Amendment was executed on
July 17, 2019 to extend the loan obligation period beyond June 1, 2018 to acknowledge and
include advances totaling $112,517 received from the Developer.
On December 17, 2015, the District issued Limited Tax General Obligation and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015, in the amount of $10,830,000 (of the $12,165,000 issued for
Series 2014A, $7,402,533 was refunded using the proceeds from Series 2015). On
September 6, 2018, the District issued Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation and
Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2018B, in the amount of $5,700,000 to refund a portion of
the Series 2014A and $2,200,000 to the Series 2014B was forgiven by the Developer. As of
December 31, 2021, the Series 2014A and Series 2014B had principal outstanding
balances of $665,293 and $914,350, respectively.
Capital Pledge Agreement
On June 6, 2014, the District entered into a Capital Pledge Agreement with District No. 3, by
which District No. 3 agreed to impose a mill levy against property within District No. 3, to be
pledged to the payment of the District’s 2014 Special Revenue Bonds. The mill levy
(Required Mill Levy) for debt service is 40 mills, subject to certain adjustments to account for
changes in the calculation of assessed valuations as a matter of State law. The obligation to
levy the Required Mill Levy continues until such time as the Series 2014 Special Revenue
Bonds and certain other obligations specified in the Capital Pledge Agreement have been
fully paid.
Senior Capital Pledge Agreement
On December 1, 2015, the District and District No. 3 (collectively, the Financing Districts)
entered into the Senior Capital Pledge Agreement with UMB Bank, N.A. (the Trustee).
District No. 3 agreed to impose the Required Mill Levy against property within its
boundaries, specific ownership tax revenues available from the imposition of such mill levy,
and any available PILOT revenues. These revenues are pledged to the payment of the
Series 2015 Senior Bonds.
(23)
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NOTE 7

AGREEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Senior Capital Pledge Agreement (Continued)
The Senior Capital Pledge Agreement was amended by a First Amendment on
September 1, 2018, for the purpose of correcting an omission of certain language pertaining
to the permitted mill levy for Subordinate District No. 3 Obligations and modifying certain
provisions that required that the 2014 Junior Lien Bonds to be paid in full prior to the
application of any ad valorem property taxes of District No. 3 in order to facilitate the
issuance of the Series 2018B Bonds.
Subordinate Capital Pledge Agreement
On September 1, 2018, the District and District No. 3 entered into the Subordinate Capital
Pledge Agreement with UMB Bank, N.A. (the Trustee). The 2018 Subordinate Pledge
Agreement constitutes a Subordinate District No. 3 obligation under the original Senior
Capital Pledge Agreement. This requires that, so long any Series 2015 Senior Bonds are
outstanding, the District must transfer all Pledged Revenue to the Senior Obligation Trustee
for payment until there is no longer an outstanding obligation. Upon this, the District is
required to deposit all Pledged Revenue for payment of the Subordinate Bonds.
Termination of District Administrative Services Agreement
The District, District No. 1, and District No. 3 entered into that certain District Administrative
Services Agreement, dated April 24, 2014, with an effective date of February 20, 2014 (the
Administrative Services Agreement), in order to coordinate the provision of administrative
services and the provision, ownership, operation, and maintenance of public improvements.
District No. 1 acted as the coordinating district under the Administrative Services
Agreement, with the District and District No. 3 paying District No. 1 for all costs incurred by
District No. 1 for the performance of the services provided by District No. 1 under the
Administrative Services Agreement. The District, District No. 1, and District No. 3
determined it was in their best interests for each to be responsible for the provision of their
own administrative services and for the ownership, operation, and maintenance of the public
improvements within each of their boundaries. As such, the District, District No. 1, and
District No. 3 terminated the Administrative Services Agreement by the approval and
execution of that certain Termination of District Administrative Services Agreement, effective
January 1, 2021.
Cost Sharing and Reciprocal Easement Agreement
As a result of the Termination of District Administrative Services Agreement, the District and
District No. 3 each became responsible for the ownership, operation, and maintenance of
public improvements within each of their boundaries. However, certain landscaping
improvements within the District and District No. 3 are serviced by interconnected and
shared irrigation systems. As such, the District and District No. 3 entered into that certain
Cost Sharing and Reciprocal Easement Agreement, effective January 1, 2021 (the Cost
Sharing Agreement), pursuant to which the District is responsible for the operation and
maintenance of the landscaping and the irrigation system within both the District and District
No. 3, with District No. 3 being obligated to reimburse District No. 2 for its share of the costs
thereof, as more fully provided in the Cost Sharing Agreement.
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NOTE 7

AGREEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Agreement Regarding Maintenance Fees
As discussed in relation to the Termination of District Administrative Services Agreement
and the Cost Sharing Agreement, the District is responsible for the ownership, operation,
and maintenance of the public improvements within its boundaries. Included in those public
improvements are a central park area, a dog park, and other landscaped areas. The District
imposes an operations and maintenance fee upon the residential properties within the
boundaries of the District to fund the same. There are or will be residential units within
District No. 3 which derive the same benefit from the operation and maintenance of such
improvements in the same manner as the residents in the District. As such, the District and
District No. 3 entered into that certain Agreement Regarding Maintenance Fees, effective
January 1, 2021, pursuant to which District No. 3 has agreed to impose an operation and
maintenance fee upon the residential units within its boundaries in the same amount and in
the same manner as the District imposes such a fee on similar residential units within its
boundaries, and then to remit the revenue from such fee to District No. 2.
Allocation Agreement
The District and District No. 3 entered into that certain Allocation Agreement, dated July 28,
2020 (the Allocation Agreement) in anticipation of the issuance of bonds by District No. 3.
There is currently in place that certain Declaration of Covenants Imposing and Implementing
Public Improvement Fee, recorded in the real property records of Arapahoe County,
Colorado on June 5, 2014, at Reception Number D404245 (the PIF Covenant), pursuant to
which a public improvement fee is charged on certain retail sales made within the
boundaries of the District, District No. 1, and District No. 3. The revenue from such public
improvement fees collected in accordance with the PIF Covenant is remitted to District No. 2
and is pledged to bonds previously issued by District No. 2. Pursuant to the Allocation
Agreement, subject to certain conditions precedent to the issuance of bonds by District
No. 3 and other conditions set forth therein, District No. 2 agrees to assign to District No. 3
certain excess revenue received by District No. 2 from the public improvement fee imposed
under the PIF Covenant, which excess revenue can then be pledged to the District No. 3
bonds.

NOTE 8

RISK MANAGEMENT
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, or
destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; or acts of God.
The District is a member of the Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool (Pool).
The Pool is an organization created by intergovernmental agreement to provide property,
liability, public officials’ liability, boiler and machinery and workers compensation coverage to its
members. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

(25)

65

LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
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NOTE 8

RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
The District pays annual premiums to the Pool for liability, property and public officials’
liability coverage. In the event aggregated losses incurred by the Pool exceed amounts
recoverable from reinsurance contracts and funds accumulated by the Pool, the Pool may
require additional contributions from the Pool members. Any excess funds which the Pool
determines are not needed for purposes of the Pool may be returned to the members
pursuant to a distribution formula.

NOTE 9

TAX, SPENDING, AND DEBT LIMITATIONS
Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution, referred to as the Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights
(TABOR), contains tax, spending, revenue and debt limitations which apply to the state of
Colorado and all local governments.
Spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior year’s Fiscal Year Spending
adjusted for allowable increases based upon inflation and local growth. Fiscal Year
Spending is generally defined as expenditures plus reserve increases with certain
exceptions. Revenue in excess of the Fiscal Year Spending limit must be refunded unless
the voters approve retention of such revenue.
On November 5, 2013, the District voters passed an election question to increase property
taxes $5,000,000 annually as adjusted for inflation, without limitation of rate, to pay the
District’s operations, maintenance, and other expenses. Additionally, the District’s electors
authorized the District to collect, retain and spend all revenue without regard to any
limitations under TABOR.
TABOR requires local governments to establish Emergency Reserves. These reserves must
be at least 3% of Fiscal Year Spending (excluding bonded debt service). Local governments
are not allowed to use the Emergency Reserves to compensate for economic conditions,
revenue shortfalls, or salary or benefit increases. As of December 31, 2021, the District has
not provided for an emergency reserve fund equal to at least 3% of fiscal year spending, as
defined under TABOR, because net tax revenue is transferred to District No. 1, the
Operating District, which provides for the required reserve amount.
The District’s management believes it is in compliance with the provisions of TABOR.
However, TABOR is complex and subject to interpretation. Many of the provisions, including
the interpretation of how to calculate Fiscal Year Spending limits, will require judicial
interpretation.
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE –
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Budget Amounts
Original
Final
REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Net Investment Income
Public Improvement Fees
Transfer from District No. 3
Total Revenues

$

839,714
58,780
7,000
35,000
175,465
1,115,959

$

839,720
57,873
1,054
42,005
172,283
1,112,935

Actual
Amounts
$

839,720
57,873
1,054
42,005
172,283
1,112,935

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)
$

-

EXPENDITURES
County Treasurer's Fees
Contingency
Bond Interest - Series 2015
Bond Interest - Series 2018B
Bond Principal - Series 2015
Paying Agent Fees
PIF Collection Fees
Total Expenditures

12,596
4,635
572,169
120,000
7,600
3,000
720,000

12,602
5,332
572,169
96,750
120,000
11,100
2,047
820,000

12,602
572,169
96,750
120,000
11,100
2,047
814,668

5,332
5,332

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

395,959

292,935

298,267

5,332

1,689,304

1,683,452

1,683,452

-

Fund Balances - Beginning of Year
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

$

2,085,263
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$

1,976,387

$

1,981,719

$

5,332
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Year Ended December 31,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
2045
Total

$10,830,000
Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds
Series 2015, Dated December 17, 2015
Interest Rate of 5.375%
Payable June 1 and December 1
Principal Due December 1
Principal
Interest
Total
$

$

140,000
150,000
170,000
180,000
205,000
215,000
245,000
255,000
285,000
300,000
330,000
350,000
385,000
405,000
440,000
465,000
505,000
535,000
580,000
610,000
660,000
695,000
750,000
1,670,000
10,525,000

(30)

$

$

565,718
558,194
550,131
540,994
531,318
520,300
508,744
495,575
481,869
466,550
450,425
432,688
413,875
393,181
371,413
347,763
322,769
295,625
266,869
235,693
202,906
167,431
130,075
89,763
9,339,869

$

$

705,718
708,194
720,131
720,994
736,318
735,300
753,744
750,575
766,869
766,550
780,425
782,688
798,875
798,181
811,413
812,763
827,769
830,625
846,869
845,693
862,906
862,431
880,075
1,759,763
19,864,869
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
SUMMARY OF ASSESSED VALUATION, MILL LEVY, AND
PROPERTY TAXES COLLECTED
DECEMBER 31, 2021

Year Ended
December 31,
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Estimated for the
Year Ending
December 31,
2022

Prior
Year
Assessed
Valuation
for Current
Year Property
Tax Levy

Mills Levied
Debt
General
Service

Total Property Taxes
Levied
Collected

$

3,311,642
8,932,645
12,456,259
14,681,486
18,856,833

10.000
11.055
11.055
11.132
11.132

40.000
44.222
44.222
44.531
44.531

$

165,582
493,769
688,545
817,215
1,049,628

$

21,161,903

11.132

44.531

$

1,177,935

$

165,582
493,770
688,365
817,035
1,049,636

Percent
Collected
to Levied
100.00 %
100.00
99.97
99.98
100.00

NOTE: Property taxes shown as collected in any one year include collection of delinquent property taxes or
abatements of property taxes assessed in prior years. This presentation does not attempt to identify
specific years of assessment.
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
phone 303‐779‐5710 fax 303‐779‐0348
CLAconnect.com

Special Districts Preparation SOW
This agreement constitutes a Statement of Work (“SOW”) to the Master Service Agreement (“MSA”) made by
and between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT #2 (“you” and “your”). The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services you wish us to perform
in connection with that agreement.
Scope of professional services
Jason Carroll, CPA is responsible for the performance of the preparation engagement and other services
identified in this agreement. They may be assisted by one or more of our authorized signers in the
performance of the preparation engagement.
Ongoing normal accounting services:
•

Outsourced accounting activities


For each fund of the district, CLA will generally prepare and maintain the following accounting
records:
o

Cash receipts journal

o

Cash disbursements journal

o

General ledger

o

Accounts receivable journals and ledgers

o

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

o

Schedule of disbursements

o

Bank account reconciliations

o

Investment records

o

Detailed development fee records



Process accounts payable including the preparation and issuance of checks for approval by the
Board of Directors.



Prepare billings, record billings, enter cash receipts, and track revenues



Reconcile certain accounts regularly and prepare journal entries



Prepare depreciation schedules
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Prepare monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements and supplementary information,
but not perform a compilation with respect to those financial statements. Additional information
is provided below.



Prepare a schedule of cash position to manage the district’s cash deposits, funding for
disbursements, and investment programs in accordance with policies established by the district’s
board of directors.



Prepare the annual budget and assist with the filing of the annual budget



Assist the district’s board of directors in monitoring actual expenditures against
appropriation/budget.



Oversee investment of district funds based on investment policies established by the board of
directors, but in any case, in accordance with State law.



Research and make recommendations to the board of directors on financial investments and cash
management matters, as requested.



If an audit is required, prepare the year‐end financial statements (additional information is
provided below) and related audit schedules for use by the district’s auditors.



If an audit is not required, prepare the Application for Exemption from Audit, perform a
compilation engagement with respect to the Application for Exemption from Audit, and assist
with the filing of the Application for Exemption from Audit – additional information is provided
below.



Monitor compliance with bond indentures and trust agreements, including preparation of
continuing disclosure reports to the secondary market as required.



Review claims for reimbursement from related parties prior to the board of directors’ review and
approval.



Read supporting documentation related to the district’s acquisition of infrastructure or other
capital assets completed by related parties for overall reasonableness and completeness.
Procedures in excess of providing overall reasonableness and completeness will be subject to a
separate SOW. These procedures may not satisfy district policies, procedures, and agreements’
requirements. Note: our procedures should not be relied upon as the final authorization for this
transaction.



Attend board meetings as requested.



Be available during the year to consult with you on any accounting matters related to the district.



Review and approve monthly reconciliations and journal entries prepared by staff



Reconcile complex accounts monthly and prepare journal entries



Analyze financial statements and present to management and the board of directors.



Develop and track key business metrics as requested and review periodically with the board of
directors.

73



Document accounting processes and procedures



Continue process and procedure improvement implementation



Report and manage cash flows



Assist with bank communications.



Perform other non‐attest services.

Compilation services
If an audit is not required, we will complete the Application for Exemption from Audit in the form prescribed
by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and perform a compilation engagement with respect to the
Application for Exemption from Audit.
Preparation services – financial statements
We will prepare the monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business‐type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information if applicable of the district, which comprise the balance sheet –
governmental funds and the related statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance –
general fund. The financial statements will not include the related notes to the financial statements; the
government‐wide financial statements; the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances – governmental funds; statement of cash flows for business type activities, if applicable; and
required supplementary information.
Preparation services – annual
If an audit is required, we will prepare the year‐end financial statements of the government wide
governmental activities, the business‐type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information if applicable, and Management Discussion
and Analysis, if applicable, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the district, and the
related notes to the financial statements. The year‐end financial statements, including the related notes to
the financial statements, will be prepared for use by the district’s auditors.
Preparation services – prospective financial information (i.e., unexpired budget information)
You have requested that we prepare the financial forecast, which comprises the forecasted financial
statements identified below.
A financial forecast presents, to the best of management’s knowledge and belief, the entity’s expected
financial position, results of operations, and cash flows for the forecast period. It is based on management’s
assumptions reflecting conditions it expects to exist and the course of action it expects to take during the
forecast period.
The financial forecast will omit substantially all of the disclosures required by the guidelines for presentation
of a financial forecast established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA
presentation guidelines) other than those related to the significant assumptions.
The supplementary information accompanying the financial forecast will be prepared and presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial forecast.
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References to financial statements in the remainder of this SOW are to be taken as a reference to also include
the prospective financial information, where applicable.
Engagement objectives and our responsibilities
The objectives of our engagement are to:
a. Prepare monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), except for the departures
from U.S. GAAP identified above, based on information provided by you and information generated
through our outsourced accounting services.
b. As requested, apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of
your monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide
any assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial
statements in order for them to be in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except for the departures from
U.S. GAAP identified above.
c. Prepare the annual budget in accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised
Statutes C.R.S. 29‐1‐105 based on information provided by you.
d. Apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of the annual
budget without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are no material
modifications that should be made to the annual budget in order for the annual budget to be in
accordance with requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29‐1‐105.
e. If an audit is required, prepare the year‐end financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) based on information
provided by you.
f.

If applicable, we will complete the Application for Exemption from Audit in the form prescribed by
the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and perform a compilation engagement on the application.

We will conduct our preparation and compilation engagements in accordance with Statements on Standards
for Accounting and Review Services (SSARSs) promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and comply with the AICPA's Code of
Professional Conduct, including the ethical principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence, and
due care.
Engagement procedures and limitations
We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided to us
for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a conclusion.
Accordingly, we will not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on the financial
statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit (if an audit is not required), the
year‐end financial statements (if an audit is required), and the supplementary information.
Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any misstatements in the monthly/quarterly/as
requested financial statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit, and the year‐
end financial statements, including misstatements caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any
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wrongdoing within the district or noncompliance with laws and regulations. However, if any of the foregoing
are identified as a result of our engagement, we will promptly report this information to the board of directors
of the district. We have no responsibility to identify and communicate deficiencies in your internal control as
part of this engagement, but will promptly report them to the board of directors of the district if they are
identified. You agree that we shall not be responsible for any misstatements in the district’s financial
statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit, and the year‐end financial
statements that we may not identify as a result of misrepresentations made to us by you.
Our report
The compilation report on the Application for Exemption from Audit will state that management is responsible
for the accompanying application included in the prescribed form, that we performed a compilation of the
application, that we did not audit or review the application, and that, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on it. The report will also state that the Application
for Exemption from Audit is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Colorado Office of the
State Auditor and is not intended to be a presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The report will include a statement that the report is intended solely
for the information and use of the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than this specified party and may not be suitable for another purpose.
There may be circumstances in which the report may differ from its expected form and content. If, for any
reason, we are unable to complete the compilation on the Application for Exemption from Audit (if an audit
is not required), we will not issue report on the Application for Exemption from Audit as a result of this
engagement.
No assurance statements
The monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements prepared for the district will not be accompanied
by a report. However, management agrees that each page of the financial statements will include a statement
clearly indicating that no assurance is provided on them.
As part of our preparation of financial statements each page of the financial statements and supplementary
information will include the following statement: “No assurance is provided on these financial statements.
Substantially all required disclosures, the government‐wide financial statements, and the statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted if applicable,
For business type activities, the Statement of Cash Flows has been omitted”.
If an audit is required, the year‐end financial statements prepared for use by the district’s auditors will not be
accompanied by a report. However, management agrees that each page of the year‐end financial statements
will include a statement clearly indicating that no assurance is provided on them.
Management responsibilities
The financial statement engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management
acknowledges and understands that our role is to prepare financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP
and assist management in the presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except
for the departures from U.S. GAAP identified above.
The annual budget engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges
and understands that our role is to prepare the annual budget in accordance with the requirements prescribed
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by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29.1.105 and assist management in the presentation of the annual budget
in accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29.1.105.
The Application for Exemption from Audit engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that
management acknowledges and understands that our role is to prepare the Application for Exemption from
Audit in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and assist
management in the presentation of the Application for Exemption from Audit in accordance with the
requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor.
We are required by professional standards to identify management’s responsibilities in this agreement.
Professional standards define management as the persons with executive responsibility for the conduct of
the district’s operations and may include some or all of those charged with governance. Those standards
require that you acknowledge and understand that management has the following overall responsibilities that
are fundamental to our undertaking the engagement in accordance with SSARSs:
a. The selection of the financial reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the financial
statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit.
b. The preparation and fair preparation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except
as identified as above, the preparation and fair presentation of the annual budget in accordance with
the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29.1.105, and the preparation and
fair presentation of the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) in accordance with the
requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor.
c. The presentation of the supplementary information.
d. The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from
Audit (if applicable) that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
e. The prevention and detection of fraud.
f.

To ensure that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities.

g. The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information,
including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to prepare financial
statements.
h. To provide us with the following:
i.

Access to all information relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, and the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) such
as records, documentation, and other matters.

ii.

Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the engagement.

iii.

Unrestricted access to persons within the entity with whom we determine it necessary to
communicate.
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We understand that you are engaging us to make recommendations and perform services to help you meet
your responsibilities relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, the annual
budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable).
For all accounting services we may provide to you, including the preparation of your financial statements, the
annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable), management agrees to assume
all management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual (i.e., the Board Treasurer);
evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for the results of the services.
Fees, time estimates, and terms
Our professional fees will be billed based on the time involved and the degree of responsibility and skills
required. We will also bill for expenses (including internal and administrative charges) plus a technology and
client support fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees billed. Our invoices for these fees will be
rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm
policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will
be deemed to have been completed even if we have not issued our report. You will be obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out‐of‐pocket expenditures through the date
of termination.
The hour rates currently in effect for our services are as follows:
Principal
Chief Financial Officer
Controller
Assistant Controller
Senior
Staff
Administrative support

$300 ‐ $500
$280 ‐ $385
$220 ‐ $330
$190 ‐ $250
$140 ‐ $190
$120 ‐ $165
$110 ‐ $150

Out‐of‐pocket expenses such as out‐of‐town travel, meals, and lodging will be billed at cost and are not
included in the fees quoted above. We will also add a technology and client support fee of five percent (5%)
of all professional fees billed. The fee estimates are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel
and their assistance with preparing requested schedules. If the requested items are not available on the dates
required or are not accurate, the estimated fees will likely be higher. If unexpected circumstances require
significant additional time, we will advise you before undertaking work that would require a substantial
increase in the fee estimates.
Use of financial statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit
The financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) are
for management’s use. If you intend to reproduce and publish the financial statements, the annual budget,
and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) and our report thereon, they must be reproduced
in their entirety. Inclusion of the financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption
from Audit (if applicable) in a document, such as an annual report or an offering document, should be done
only with our prior approval of the document. You are responsible to provide us the opportunity to review
such documents before issuance.
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With regard to the electronic dissemination of financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application
for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) that have been subjected to a compilation engagement, including
financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable)
published electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute
information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in those sites or to consider
the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document.
We may issue preliminary draft financial statements to you for your review. Any preliminary draft financial
statements should not be relied on or distributed.
Municipal advisors
For the avoidance of doubt, the district is not engaging CLA as a municipal advisor, and CLA is not a municipal
advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd‐Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act or under
Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”). CLA is not recommending an action to you, is
not acting as an advisor to you, and does not owe a fiduciary duty to you pursuant to Section 158 of the Act
with respect to the information and material contained in the deliverables issued under this engagement. You
should discuss any information and material contained in the deliverables with any and all internal and
external advisors that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material.
Agreement
We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms
and provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign
below and return a signed copy to us by email or U.S. mail to indicate your acknowledgment and
understanding of, and agreement with, this SOW.
Sincerely,
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Jason Carroll, CPA
Principal
Jason.Carroll@CLAconnect.com
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APPROVED:

____________________________________________
Signature

____________________________________________
Title

____________________________________________
Date
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
phone 303‐779‐5710 fax 303‐779‐0348
CLAconnect.com

Special Districts Payroll Services SOW
This agreement constitutes a Statement of Work (“SOW”) to the Master Service Agreement (“MSA”) made
by and between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and LITTLETON VILLAGE
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT #2 (“you” and “your”). The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services
you wish us to perform in connection with that agreement.
Scope of payroll preparation services
We will provide the following payroll preparation services from information you provide:


For each pay period:
– Perform payroll calculations
– Prepare payroll checks or pay‐stubs in the case of direct deposit of employee net pay
– Initiate electronic transfer of funds for employee net pay and payroll tax deposit liabilities
– Processing retirement plan contribution payments
– Preparation of information needed for the retirement plan and other census information



Prepare the following government forms annually for each calendar year‐end (may be filed
electronically):
– All copies of required forms W‐2 and W‐3
– Form 940 – Employers Annual Federal Unemployment Tax Return, if applicable
– Form 943 – Employers Annual Tax Return for Agricultural Employees
– All necessary state forms, if applicable



If applicable, prepare the following government reporting forms for each calendar quarter‐end
(may be filed electronically):
– Form 941 – Employers Quarterly Tax Return
– State Employers Quarterly Withholding Return
– State Employers Quarterly Unemployment Tax Return (SUTA)
– Initiate electronic funds transfer for quarterly Federal Unemployment Tax (FUTA) liability



Cash access services related to payroll services
– Obtain one or more signature stamps bearing the name(s) and facsimile signature(s) of any of
your officer(s) who are responsible for signing checks and bank drafts on your behalf.
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– Obtain access to electronic signatures or signatures embedded into cloud‐based software for
the purpose of drafting payments on your behalf.
– Prepare checks to be drawn upon your bank account(s) and to use the above noted methods
to thereby finally approve such checks for payment by the corresponding bank(s).
– Initiate the direct deposit of employee net pay from funds drawn upon your bank account(s).


The following services would impair independence
– Accept responsibility to authorize payment of client funds, electronically or otherwise, except
as specifically provided for with respect to electronic payroll tax payments.
– Accept responsibility to sign or cosign client checks, even if only in emergency situations.
– Maintain a client’s bank account or otherwise have custody of a client’s funds or make credit
for banking decisions for the client.

Our responsibility to you and limitations of the payroll services
We will prepare your federal and state (if applicable) payroll forms and tax returns in accordance with the
applicable payroll tax laws.
We will not audit or otherwise verify the accuracy or completeness of the information we receive from
you for the preparation of the payroll and related returns, and our engagement cannot be relied upon to
uncover errors or irregularities in the underlying information. However, we will inform the board of
directors of the district of any material errors and of any evidence or information that comes to our
attention during the performance of our payroll preparation services that fraud may have occurred. In
addition, we will inform you of any evidence or information that comes to our attention during the
performance of our payroll preparation services regarding illegal acts that may have occurred, unless they
are clearly inconsequential. We have no responsibility to identify deficiencies in your internal control as
part of this engagement but will promptly report them to the board of directors of the district if identified.
You agree that we shall not be responsible for any misstatements in your payroll that we may not identify
as a result of misrepresentations made to us by you.
Our payroll preparation services will include electronically transmitting information to taxing authorities
and your financial institution to facilitate the electronic transfer of funds. Authorizations for us to provide
these services will be made in separate communications.
Our payroll preparation services will include transmitting federal Form W‐2, federal Form 1099, and
payroll data forms to federal and state taxing authorities on your behalf. Authorizations for us to provide
these services will be made in separate communications.
Your responsibilities
It is your responsibility to provide us with all of the information needed to prepare complete and accurate
payrolls and returns. We will have no obligations with regard to a particular payroll or withholding taxes
and filing returns in a particular state or local tax jurisdiction until you have provided such information to
us. All necessary information should be provided to us within two days of the close of each payroll period
or no later than two days prior to your payroll check date. A list of information we will require and the
dates required will be provided in a separate communication.
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For all nonattest services we may provide to you, including these payroll services, management agrees to
assume all management responsibilities; oversee the services; by designating an individual, preferably
within senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience to understand
and oversee the services; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept
responsibility for the results of the services.
Specifically, your responsibilities include:


Accuracy of information used in the preparation of the payrolls.



Careful review of paychecks or pay‐stubs, and payroll journals for each periodic payroll.



Accuracy of information used in the preparation and filing of all government forms.



Review and pre‐approval of each electronic funds transfer initiated on your behalf for employee
net pay amounts, payroll tax and withholding liabilities, and related benefit amounts.

You are responsible to carefully review the paper returns that we prepare on your behalf before signing
and submitting them to tax authorities. You are responsible to review the paper copies of payroll forms
and tax returns that were filed electronically on your behalf. We will advise you with regard to tax
positions taken in the preparation of the payroll forms and tax returns, but the responsibility for the
payroll forms and tax returns remains with you.
You are also responsible for the payment of payroll tax and withholding liabilities. Therefore, the Internal
Revenue Service recommends that you enroll in the U.S. Department of the Treasury Electronic Federal
Tax Payment System (EFTPS) to monitor your account and ensure that timely tax payments are being
made for you. You may enroll in the EFTPS online at www.eftps.gov, or call 800‐555‐4477 for an
enrollment form. Individual states have similar programs that allow you to monitor your account. A list of
links by state is provided online at http://www.americanpayroll.org/weblink/statelocal‐wider/.
Your responsibilities relevant to CLA’s access to your cash
Someone with management authority is responsible for the processes below. All approvals listed must be
documented in writing, either electronically or manually:


Approve all new employees and all employee status changes prior to those employees or changes



being added to the payroll system.



Approve all payroll runs prior to cash being committed.

Fees
Our professional fees will be billed based on the degree of responsibility and contribution of the
professionals working on the engagement. We will also bill for expenses (including internal and
administrative charges) plus a technology and client support fee of five percent (5%) of all professional
fees billed. Other than annual adjustments reflecting inflation, our professional fees will not fluctuate
unless there is a significant change in the number of employees, taxing jurisdictions, or in the services you
wish for us to provide. If such changes should occur, we will discuss any fee adjustments with you prior to
making any changes to your billing. Lastly, any additional forms that you would like us to complete will be
charged at an hourly fee.
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The hour rates currently in effect for our services are as follows:
Principal
Chief Financial Officer
Controller
Assistant Controller
Senior
Staff
Administrative support

$300 ‐ $500
$280 ‐ $385
$220 ‐ $330
$190 ‐ $250
$140 ‐ $190
$120 ‐ $165
$110 ‐ $150

We do not anticipate encountering the need to perform additional services beyond those described in
this letter. Below are examples of services considered to be outside the scope of our engagement. We will
bill you for additional services you would like us to provide at an hourly fee at periodic dates after the
additional service has been performed.


Reprocessing for corrected information provided to us subsequent to original payroll



Preparation of non‐standard reports



Calculation of fringe benefit additions



Processing retirement plan contribution payments



Preparation of retirement plan and other census information



Responding to workers compensation insurance audits



Responding to employment verification requests



Preparation of additional state tax registrations



Preparation of amended payroll tax returns



Responding to tax notices

Tax examinations
All government forms and returns are subject to potential examination by the IRS and state taxing
authorities. In the event of an examination, we will be available, at your request, to assist or represent
you. Services in connection with tax examinations are not included in our fee for preparation of your
payroll returns. Our fee for such services will be billed to you separately, along with any direct costs.
Record retention
You are responsible for retaining all documents, records, payroll journals, canceled checks, receipts, or
other evidence in support of information and amounts reported in your payroll records and on your
quarterly and calendar year‐end payroll forms and tax returns. These items may be necessary in the event
the taxing authority examines or challenges your returns. These records should be kept for at least seven
years. Your copy of the payroll forms and tax returns should be retained indefinitely.
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In preparing the payrolls, payroll forms, and tax returns, we rely on your representation that you
understand and have complied with these documentation requirements. You are responsible for the
proper recording of transactions in the books of accounts, for the safeguarding of assets, and for the
substantial accuracy of your financial records.
All of the records that you provide to us to prepare your payrolls and related forms and tax returns will
be returned to you after our use. Our working papers, including any copies of your records that we chose
to make, are our property and will be retained by us in accordance with our established records retention
policy. This policy states, in general, that we will retain our working papers for a period of seven years.
After this period expires, our working papers and files will be destroyed. Furthermore, physical
deterioration or catastrophic events may shorten the time our records are available. The working papers
and files of our firm are not a substitute for the records of you.
Tax consulting services
This SOW also covers tax consulting services that may arise for which you seeks our consultation and
advice, both written and oral, that are not the subject of a separate SOW. These additional services are
not included in our fees for the preparation of the payroll and related federal and state forms and tax
returns.
We will base our tax analysis and conclusions on the facts you provide to us, and will not independently
verify those facts. We will review the applicable tax law, tax regulations, and other tax authorities, all of
which are subject to change. At your request, we will provide a memorandum of our conclusions. Written
advice provided by us is for your information and use only and is not to be provided to any third party
without our express written consent.
Unless we are separately engaged to do so, we will not continuously monitor and update our advice for
subsequent changes or modifications to the tax law and regulations, or to the related judicial and
administrative interpretations.
Communications and confidentiality
CLA will hold the information supplied by you to us in confidence and CLA will not disclose it to any other
person or party, unless you authorizes us to do so, it is published or released by you, or it becomes publicly
known or available other than through disclosure by us, or disclosure is required by law. This
confidentiality provision does not prohibit us from disclosing your information to one or more of our
affiliated companies in order to provide services that you have requested from us or from any such
affiliated company. Any such affiliated company shall be subject to the same restrictions on the use and
disclosure of your information as apply to us.
The Internal Revenue Code contains a limited privilege for confidentiality of tax advice between you and
our firm. In addition, the laws of some states likewise recognize a confidentiality privilege for some
accountant‐client communications. You understand that CLA makes no representation, warranty or
promise, and offers no opinion with respect to the applicability of any confidentiality privilege to any
information supplied or communications you have with us, and, to the extent that we follow instructions
from you to withhold such information or communications in the face of a request from a third party
(including a subpoena, summons or discovery demand in litigation), you agree to hold CLA harmless
should the privilege be determined not to apply to particular information or communications.
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Consent to send you publications and other materials
For your convenience, CLA produces a variety of publications, hard copy and electronic, to keep you
informed about pertinent business and personal financial issues. This includes published articles,
invitations to upcoming seminars, webinars and webcasts, newsletters, surveys, and press releases. To
determine whether these materials may be of interest to you, CLA will need to use your tax return
information. Such tax information includes your name and address as well as the business and financial
information you provided to us.
By signing and dating this SOW, you authorize CLA to use the information that you provide to CLA during
the preparation of your tax returns to determine whether to offer you relevant materials. Your consent is
valid until further notice. If you do not wish to authorize such use, please strike out this paragraph prior
to signing the SOW.
Legal compliance
You agree to assume sole responsibility for full compliance with all applicable federal and state laws, rules
or regulations, and reporting obligations that apply to you or your business, including the accuracy and
lawfulness of any reports you submit to any government regulator, authority, or agency. You also agree
to be solely responsible for providing legally sufficient substantiation, evidence, or support for any reports
or information supplied by you to any governmental or regulatory body, or for any insurance
reimbursement in the event that you is requested to do so by any lawful authority. Except as outlined in
this SOW, CLA, its successors, affiliates, officers, and employees do not assume or undertake any duty to
perform or to be responsible in any way for any such duties, requirements, or obligations.
Agreement
We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms
and provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please
sign below and return a signed copy to us by email or U.S. mail to indicate your acknowledgment and
understanding of, and agreement with, this SOW.
Sincerely,
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

ICLM_IntSignature:1
IntSignature:2
Jason Carroll, CPA
Principal
Jason.Carroll@CLAconnect.com
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APPROVED:

____________________________________________
Signature

____________________________________________
Title

____________________________________________
Date
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
phone 303‐779‐5710 fax 303‐779‐0348
CLAconnect.com

Special Districts Public Administration Services SOW
This agreement constitutes a Statement of Work (“SOW”) to the Master Service Agreement (“MSA”) made by
and between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT #2 (“you” and “your”). The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services you wish us to perform in
connection with that agreement.
Scope of professional services
Denise Denslow is responsible for the performance of the engagement and other services identified in this
agreement. They may be assisted by one or more of our authorized signers in the performance of the engagement.
Scope of Public Management Services
CLA will perform the following services for the District:
District Board of Directors (“Board”) Meetings







Coordination of Board meetings
Meeting Attendance: District Manager and/or designee will attend Board meetings
Preparation and distribution of agenda and informational materials as requested by the District
Drafting of meeting minutes as assigned for approval by the Board of Directors.
Preparation and posting of notices required in conjunction with the meetings

Recordkeeping




Maintain directory of persons and organizations for correspondence
Repository of District records and act as Custodian of records for purposes of CORA (as that term is
defined in the District’s Resolution Designating an Official Custodian for Purposes of the Colorado Open
Records Act, Sections 24‐72‐201 et seq., C.R.S.).

Communications




24/7 answering services



Assist with or lead the coordination of communication with municipal, county, or state governmental
agencies as requested by the District.

Website administration. CLA will oversee maintenance of the District’s website as needed or requested
by the District

88

General Administration
 Coordination with district’s insurance provider including insurance administration, comparison of
coverage, processing claims, and completion of applications..
 Coordination of insurance policy renewals and updates for approval by the district’s board of
directors.
 In collaboration with District counsel, ensure contractors and sub‐contractors maintain the required
insurance coverage as required by the district.
 At the direction of the Board of directors, supervise project processes a n d v e n d o r s a s
assigned by the Board
 Coordinate with legal, accounting, engineering, auditing and other consultants retained by the
District as directed by the Board (CLA itself will not and cannot provide legal services);
 Assist with or lead the coordination efforts with municipal, county, or state governmental agencies
as requested by the District.

 Coordinate the administration of the District’s Rules and Regulations as requested by the


Board.
At the direction of District legal counsel, coordinate election processes for the District. CLA
will not serve as the Designated Election Official (“DEO”);

Accounts Payable Services to be Provided:
 Coordinate review and approval of invoices with District Accountant and Board to ensure
timely payment to vendors.
In addition to these services, when, in the professional opinion of the District Manager, other services
are necessary, the District Manager shall recommend the same to the Board or perform such services and
report to the Board the nature of such services, the reason they were required, and the result achieved;
provided however, with the exception of emergencies, that if such additional services are expected
to cost more than $2,000.00, the District Manager shall discuss such costs with the Board and receive
prior authorization to perform such services.
Fees, time estimates, and terms
Our professional fees will be billed based on the time involved and the degree of responsibility and skills
required. We will also bill for expenses (including internal and administrative charges) plus a technology and
client support fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees billed. Our invoices for these fees will be
rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm
policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will
be deemed to have been completed even if we have not issued our report. You will be obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out‐of‐pocket expenditures through the date
of termination.
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CLA’S 2022‐2023 STANDARD HOURLY RATES FOR PUBLIC MANAGEMENT SERVICES:
Principals
Public managers
Assistant public managers
Public management analysts
District administrators
Records retention professionals

$300 – $425
$190 ‐ $265
$145 ‐ $175
$135 ‐ $155
$135 ‐ $165
$110 ‐ $140

Out‐of‐pocket expenses such as out‐of‐town travel, meals, and lodging will be billed at cost and are not
included in the fees quoted above. The fee estimates are based on anticipated cooperation from your
personnel and their assistance with preparing requested schedules. If the requested items are not available
on the dates required or are not accurate, the estimated fees will likely be higher. If unexpected circumstances
require significant additional time, we will advise you before undertaking work that would require a
substantial increase in the fee estimates.
Municipal advisors
For the avoidance of doubt, the district is not engaging CLA as a municipal advisor, and CLA is not a municipal
advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd‐Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act or under
Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”). CLA is not recommending an action to you, is
not acting as an advisor to you, and does not owe a fiduciary duty to you pursuant to Section 158 of the Act
with respect to the information and material contained in the deliverables issued under this engagement. You
should discuss any information and material contained in the deliverables with any and all internal and
external advisors that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material.
Agreement
We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms
and provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign
below and return a signed copy to us by email or U.S. mail to indicate your acknowledgment and
understanding of, and agreement with, this SOW.
Sincerely,
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Denise Denslow
Principal
Denise.Denslow@CLAconnect.com
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APPROVED:

____________________________________________
Signature

____________________________________________
Title

____________________________________________
Date
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
phone 303-779-5710 fax 303-779-0348
CLAconnect.com

Special Districts Billing Services SOW
This agreement constitutes a Statement of Work (“SOW”) to the Master Service Agreement (“MSA”) made by
and between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and LITTLETON VILLAGE MD #2 (“you” and
“your”). The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services you wish us to perform in connection with that
agreement.
Scope of professional services
Jason Carroll, CPA is responsible for the performance of the engagement and other services identified in this
agreement. They may be assisted by one or more of our authorized signers in the performance of the
engagement.
Billing services:
















Customer calls or emails;
Develop payment arrangements for past due customers;
Late notice inquiries;
Owner/renter changes;
Title company inquiries;
HOA specific inquiries.
Lockbox processing;
Manual payments;
Inventory analyses/processing;
Late notice processing;
Account adjustments;
Customer set-ups;
Payment processing and online payment processing;
Monthly accounting/Financial Management interface;
Prepare accounts receivable report as requested by the Board.

Engagement objectives and our responsibilities
Provide periodic billing and collection services to customers as requested and/or in accordance with the
organization’s policies.
Fees, time estimates, and terms
Our professional fees will be billed based on the time involved and the degree of responsibility and skills
required. We will also bill for expenses (including internal and administrative charges) plus a technology and
client support fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees billed. Our invoices for these fees will be
rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm
policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will
be deemed to have been completed even if we have not issued our report. You will be obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date
of termination.
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2022-2023 hourly rates currently in effect for our services are as follows:
Additional Accounting Support
Supervisors/Directors
Senior Technicians
Technicians

$90-$400
$200-$220
$145-$160
$95 - $120

Out-of-pocket expenses such as out-of-town travel, meals, and lodging will be billed at cost and are not
included in the fees quoted above. We will also add a technology and client support fee of five percent (5%)
of all professional fees billed. The fee estimates are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel
and their assistance with preparing requested schedules. If the requested items are not available on the dates
required or are not accurate, the estimated fees will likely be higher. If unexpected circumstances require
significant additional time, we will advise you before undertaking work that would require a substantial
increase in the fee estimates.
Unless otherwise stated in the organization’s fee and collections resolution, CLA Billing Service staff shall be
authorized to execute penalty or fee waivers per account, per calendar year, not to exceed $100 in the
aggregate. Any penalty or fee waivers in excess of $100, per account, or any additional waivers requested by
individual account holders must be approved by the Board of Directors.
Municipal advisors
For the avoidance of doubt, the district is not engaging CLA as a municipal advisor, and CLA is not a municipal
advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act or under
Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”). CLA is not recommending an action to you, is
not acting as an advisor to you, and does not owe a fiduciary duty to you pursuant to Section 158 of the Act
with respect to the information and material contained in the deliverables issued under this engagement. You
should discuss any information and material contained in the deliverables with any and all internal and
external advisors that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material.
Agreement
We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms
and provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign
below and return a signed copy to us by email or U.S. mail to indicate your acknowledgment and
understanding of, and agreement with, this SOW.
Sincerely,
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Jason Carroll, CPA
Principal
Jason.Carroll@CLAconnect.com
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APPROVED:

____________________________________________
Signature

____________________________________________
Title

____________________________________________
Date
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
phone 303-779-5710 fax 303-779-0348
CLAconnect.com

Special Districts Public Improvement Fee SOW
This agreement constitutes a Statement of Work (“SOW”) to the Master Service Agreement (“MSA”) made by
and between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and LITTLETON VILLAGE MD #2 (“you” and
“your”). The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services you wish us to perform in connection with that
agreement.
Scope of professional services
Jason Carroll, CPA is responsible for the performance of the engagement and other services identified in this
agreement. They may be assisted by one or more of our authorized signers in the performance of the
engagement.
Services to be Provided
PIF Receiving Agent Services
 Coordinate with leasing agent to obtain contact information on all new tenants.
 Provide tenants with proper PIF documentation and placards for display.
 Coordinate with tenants to ensure proper disclosure and calculation of PIF.
 Receive, receipt and deposit PIF payments.
 Maintain and monitor PIF receipts and records.
 Quarterly compliance checks at retail locations.
 Quarterly compliance checks and follow-up with retail locations as needed
 Coordination with leasing agent or legal counsel as needed.
Fees, time estimates, and terms
Our professional fees will be billed based on the time involved and the degree of responsibility and skills
required. We will also bill for expenses (including internal and administrative charges) plus a technology and
client support fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees billed. Our invoices for these fees will be
rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm
policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will
be deemed to have been completed even if we have not issued our report. You will be obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date
of termination.
CLA’S 2022-2023 STANDARD HOURLY RATES SERVICES:
Additional Accounting Support
Supervisors/Directors
Senior Technicians
Technicians

$90-$400
$200-$220
$145-$160
$95 - $120
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Out-of-pocket expenses such as out-of-town travel, meals, and lodging will be billed at cost and are not
included in the fees quoted above. The fee estimates are based on anticipated cooperation from your
personnel and their assistance with preparing requested schedules. If the requested items are not available
on the dates required or are not accurate, the estimated fees will likely be higher. If unexpected circumstances
require significant additional time, we will advise you before undertaking work that would require a
substantial increase in the fee estimates.
Municipal advisors
For the avoidance of doubt, the district is not engaging CLA as a municipal advisor, and CLA is not a municipal
advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act or under
Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”). CLA is not recommending an action to you, is
not acting as an advisor to you, and does not owe a fiduciary duty to you pursuant to Section 158 of the Act
with respect to the information and material contained in the deliverables issued under this engagement. You
should discuss any information and material contained in the deliverables with any and all internal and
external advisors that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material.
Agreement
We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms
and provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign
below and return a signed copy to us by email or U.S. mail to indicate your acknowledgment and
understanding of, and agreement with, this SOW.

Sincerely,
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Jason Carroll, CPA
Principal
Jason.Carroll@CLAconnect.com
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APPROVED:

____________________________________________
Signature

____________________________________________
Title

____________________________________________
Date
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SERVICES AGREEMENT

Snow Removal
THIS SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered as of October 1,
2022 by and between Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2, a quasi-municipal corporation
and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and Brightview Landscape
Services, Inc., a Colorado corporation, (the “Contractor”). The District and the Contractor are
sometimes referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”
In consideration of the following mutual covenants and obligations, the Parties agree as
follows:
1.
Scope of Services. The Contractor agrees to provide services related to snow
removal, as described in Exhibit A attached hereto “Scope of Services.” All provisions of the Scope
of Services, including without limitation any terms and conditions included therein, shall be subject
to the provisions of this Agreement. In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of this
Agreement and Scope of Services, the provisions contained within this Agreement shall control.
2.
Time of Commencement and Completion of Services. The services to be performed
pursuant to this Agreement shall be initiated no later than October 1, 2022. Services shall terminate
effective May 31, 2023. Any extensions of the contract time must be agreed upon in writing by the
Parties.
3.
Early Termination by District. Notwithstanding the time periods contained herein,
the District may terminate this Agreement at any time without cause by providing written notice of
termination to the Contractor. Such notice shall be delivered at least three (3) days prior to the
termination date contained in said notice unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Parties. In the
event of any such early termination by the District, the Contractor shall be paid for services rendered
prior to the date of termination, subject only to the satisfactory performance of the Contractor’s
obligations under this Agreement. Such payment shall be the Contractor’s sole right and remedy for
such termination.
4.
Compensation. In consideration of the services to be performed, the District agrees
to pay the Contractor the amounts set forth in the Scope of Services. The District shall provide no
benefits to the Contractor other than the compensation stated above. The Contractor shall bill its
charges to the District once a month.
5.
District Representative. Prior to commencement of work, the District will designate
its representative (the “District Representative”) who shall make, within the scope of his or her
authority, all necessary and proper decisions with reference to the Scope of Services. All requests for
contract interpretations, change orders, and other clarification or instruction shall be directed to the
District Representative.
6.
Independent Contractor. The services to be performed by the Contractor are those of
an independent contractor and not of an employee of the District. The Contractor is obligated to pay
federal and state income tax on any moneys earned pursuant to this Agreement. Neither the
Contractor nor its employees, if any, are entitled to Workers’ Compensation benefits from the
District for the performance of the services specified in this Agreement.
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7.
Personal Services. It is understood that the District enters into this Agreement based
on the special abilities of the Contractor and that this Agreement shall be considered an agreement
for personal services. Accordingly, the Contractor shall neither assign any responsibilities nor
delegate any duties arising under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the District.
The Contractor accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established between the Parties. The
Contractor shall use its best efforts and shall perform the services hereunder at or above the standard
of care of those in its profession or industry providing similar services in the District’s local area.
8.
Insurance. The Contractor represents, warrants, and agrees that it has and shall
maintain state minimum Workers’ Compensation insurance coverage for its employees, if any. The
Contractor shall also maintain broad form general liability, property damage, and automotive liability
insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 for bodily injury, death, or damage to property of
any person and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. All insurance policies (except Workers’ Compensation)
shall include the District as an additional insured. At the request of the District, the Contractor shall
provide the District with documentation evidencing such coverages.
9.
Compliance with Laws. The Contractor is obligated to familiarize itself and comply
with all laws applicable to the performance of the Scope of Services.
10.
Acceptance Not Waiver. The District’s approval or acceptance of, or payment for,
any of the services shall not be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights or benefits provided to
the District under this Agreement.
11.
Default. Each and every term and condition hereof shall be deemed to be a material
element of this Agreement. In the event either Party should fail or refuse to perform according to the
terms of this Agreement, such Party may be declared in default.
12.
Remedies. In the event a Party declares a default by the other Party, such defaulting
Party shall be allowed a period of ten (10) days within which to cure said default. In the event the
default remains uncorrected, the Party declaring default may elect to (a) terminate the Agreement and
seek damages; (b) treat the Agreement as continuing and require specific performance; or (c) avail
itself of any other remedy at law or equity. If the non-defaulting Party commences legal or equitable
actions against the defaulting Party, the defaulting Party shall be liable to the non-defaulting Party for
the non-defaulting Party’s reasonable attorney fees and costs incurred because of the default. Under
no circumstances shall either Party be liable to the other Party for special, punitive, indirect or
consequential damages arising out of or in connection with this Agreement.
13.
Indemnification; No Waiver of Liability. The Contractor agrees to indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the District from any and all damages and liabilities arising from the
Contractor’s performance of the Scope of Services. As part of this obligation, the Contractor shall
compensate the District for the time, if any, spent by its legal counsel in connection with such claims
or actions. The District is relying on, and does not waive or intend to waive by any provision of this
Agreement, the monetary limitations or any other rights, immunities, defenses and protections
provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act § 24-10-101 et seq., C.R.S., or otherwise
available to the District or its officers or employees.
14.
Binding Effect. This writing constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and
shall be binding upon the Parties, their officers, employees, agents and assigns and shall inure to the
LVMD#2
2022 BrightView Snow Removal
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benefit of the respective survivors, heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of the
Parties.
15.
Jurisdiction, Law; Venue. The laws of the State of Colorado shall govern the
construction, interpretation, execution and enforcement of this Agreement. Jurisdiction and venue
for any dispute between the Parties arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be in the State of
Colorado District Court for the county in which the District is located.
16.
Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render
unenforceable any other provision of this Agreement.
17.
Annual Appropriation. The District’s obligations hereunder are subject to the annual
appropriation of funds necessary for the performance thereof, which appropriations shall be made in
the sole discretion of the District’s Board of Directors, pursuant to Article X, Section 20 of the
Colorado Constitution and Section 29-1-110, C.R.S.
18.
Taxes. The District is a governmental entity and is therefore exempt from state and
local sales and use tax. The District will not pay for or reimburse any sales or use tax that may not
directly be imposed against the District. The Contractor shall use the District’s sales tax exemption
for the purchase of any and all products and equipment on behalf of the District.
19.
Notices. All notices which are required or which may be given under this Agreement
shall be effective when hand delivered, sent via nationally recognized overnight courier, or 3 days
after mailing via first class mail, postage prepaid and sent to the address first set forth on the Exhibit
A, hereto.
20.
Counterparts, Electronic Signatures and Electronic Records. This Agreement may be
executed in two counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but all of which, together, shall
constitute one and the same instrument. The Agreement and any other documents requiring a
signature may be signed electronically by either Party.
21.
No Third Party Beneficiaries. The Parties to this Agreement do not intend to benefit
any person not a party to this Agreement. No person or entity, other than the Parties to this
Agreement, shall have any right, legal or equitable, to enforce any provision of this Agreement.
[Remainder of Page Blank – Signature Page to Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Services Agreement as of
the date first set forth above.
BrightView Landscape Services, Inc.

By:
Name:
Title:

Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2
By:
Name:
Title:

LVMD#2
2022 BrightView Snow Removal
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EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

CLIENT PRICING AGREEMENT

2022.16169943
102

Annual Snow Service Order
BrightView Landscape Services, Inc. (BrightView)
40040_BVLS Denver West

2333 W Oxford Ave Sheridan CO 80110

9/30/2022 12:57
400400296

Ph: (303) 761-9262

• SERVICE LOCATION (Location)

• CLIENT INFORMATION (Client)

Loc ID
Location Name
Estimate
16169943 LITTLETON VILLAGE
400400296
Location Address
C/O CLIFTON LARSON ALLEN LLP, GREENWOOD VILLAGE, CO 80111

Client ID

• SCOPE OF SERVICES

Service Start:

Vehicle Site Area(s) (VEH)

Billing Address
BRIGHTVIEW LANDSCAPE DEVELOPMENT, INC., LOCATION # 1110, PARKER, CO 80134

10/01/2022
Service Start Trigger

Parking/Drive Areas (LOTS)

2"

Ice Watch (Vehicle)

Declined

Company Name
CLIFTON LARSON ALLEN LLP

Service End:

05/31/2023

Pedestrian Sites Areas (PED)

Start Season:

Private Sidewalks (PRI WALKS)

2"

Public Sidewalks (PUB WALKS)

2"

Ice Watch (Pedestrian)

2022

Service Start Trigger

Declined

Anti-Ice/Pretreatment (Vehicle)
Declined
Anti-Ice/Pretreatment (Pedestrian)
Declined
BrightView is only responsible for performing Services in the selected Site Areas after the indicated Service Trigger is reached. Services requested before the
Trigger is met shall begin upon a reasonable period after notification from the Client and may result in additional fees. Services provided under this agreement
shall be directed and managed by BrightView in order to maintain safe conditions in the Site Areas indicated.
• Client Declines to have BrightView stake the Location.
• BrightView will not be responsible for damages caused to roads, curbs, road-edges, turf-edges or other objects not properly identified.
• Speed bumps/humps/tables shall not be repaired/replaced regardless of staking conditions.
• Bulk de-icing material will be purchased (Supplied) by BrightView and applied by BrightView.
• Bagged de-icing material will be purchased (Supplied) by BrightView and applied by BrightView.
• All Time & Material Rates are Port-to-Port, and are subject to minimum fees as noted in the Price Schedule
• All prices exclude any applicable sales tax, should client request tax to be included BrightView may automatically adjust the price if tax laws change
to reflect such increase.
By signing this Service Order, Client acknowledges and agrees that (a) snow or ice may accumulate while Services are being performed,
(b) even when there is no precipitation present, snow may blow or drift onto a Service Location or be brushed onto cars, parking, and driving
areas or walkways, and (c) properly plowed snow may melt and refreeze after Services are fully performed. Accordingly, Client understands
and agrees that (i) BrightView cannot guarantee that the performance of the Services will remove all snow and ice from any Service Location,
and (ii) some snow or ice may still be present at a Service Location during or after the performance of Services.

• PRICE SCHEDULE BrightView will be compensated for work performed at the Service Location according to the agreed to prices
shown below. All listed equipment items includes the respective equipment and required operator.
Category
TM
TM
TM
TM
TM
TM
TM
TM
TM

Area
Service/Unit Description
ALL AREAS
Crew Member
ALL AREAS
Bag Ice Melt
ALL AREAS
Utility Vehicle
ALL AREAS
ATV
ALL AREAS
Truck with Plow
ALL AREAS
Truck with Spreader/Sprayer
ALL AREAS
Ice Slicer
ALL AREAS
Skid Steer
ALL AREAS
Loader 3CY+ Bucket

• ORDER EFFECTIVE DATE:

10/01/2022

Unit
Hr
50 Lbs
Hr
Hr
Hr
Hr
TN
Hr
Hr

Min. Chg.
1 Hr
1 Bag
1 Hr
1 Hr
1 Hr
1 Hr
1 Ton
1 Hr
1 Hr

Price

Price

Price

Price

2022
Price
$65.00
$49.00
$112.00
$104.00
$116.00
$116.00
$275.00
$160.00
$304.00

This Service Order is accepted by BrightView and Client and forms part of the Master

Snow Management Agreement signed by the parties and restates and replaces any Service Order previously agreed to for the above Location.

For BrightView:
Printed:

For Client:

10/01/2022

Printed:

Email:

Email:

Title:

Title:

10/01/2022
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LANDSCAPE SERVICES AGREEMENT
Terms and Conditions
THIS LANDSCAPE SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of January 1, 2023 between
BrightView Landscapes, LLC (“BrightView”), and Littleton Village Metropolitan District #2 (“Client”). If Client is other than the
record owner of each property where goods or services will be delivered under this Agreement, then Client is executing and
entering into this Agreement on its own behalf and as duly authorized agent for the record owner(s) of those properties.
NOW, THEREFORE, Client and BrightView mutually agree to the following terms and conditions:
1. Services.
(a) For purposes of this Agreement: (i) the “Services” consist
of the landscape maintenance, construction, irrigation,
and other general landscape services described in the
“Scope of Landscape Services” attached hereto, together
with delivery or installation of any associated goods and
materials, and (ii) the “Landscape Site(s)” consist of the
exterior landscaped areas for each of the site(s) identified
in the attached Scope of Landscape Services, where
Services will be furnished by BrightView in accordance
with the Scope of Landscape Services. More than one
Scope of Landscape Services may be attached hereto, in
the event of multiple Landscape Sites.
(b) During the Term (defined below), BrightView shall furnish
the Services or arrange for the Services to be furnished
in accordance with applicable professional horticulture
standards and any local requirements or regulations in
effect, using appropriately trained, uniformed, and
supervised personnel, and properly maintained
equipment.
(c) All tools, equipment, surplus materials, landscape waste
materials and rubbish will be removed from each
Landscape Site after Services are completed.
(d) Any regulated substances required to be applied as part
of the Services shall be applied in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations by properly licensed
personnel.
Other materials shall be applied in
accordance with the manufacturer’s directions.
2. Term. The “Initial Term” of this Agreement shall start on
January 1, 2023 and end on December 31, 2023. Thereafter,
this Agreement shall renew automatically for successive oneyear periods (each, a “Renewal Term”) on each anniversary
of the start date of the Initial Term (each, an ”Anniversary
Date”), unless either party gives written notice to the other
party of its intent not to renew at least 90days prior to the next
Anniversary Date. The Initial Term, together with any
Renewal Term, comprises the “Term.”
3. Work Orders.
If Client requests services from
BrightView that are not set forth on the Scope of Landscape
Services or at a worksite for which there is no attached Scope
of Landscape Services, then BrightView may elect in its sole
discretion to furnish such additional services and any related
goods and materials pursuant to a written work authorization
signed by Client (each, a “Work Order”). For services, goods,
or materials furnished pursuant to a Work Order, payment
shall be due from Client to BrightView as specified by such
Work Order or, if unspecified in such Work Order, then upon
delivery of the services, goods, and materials identified in the
Work Order (the “Work Order Charges”).

BRIGHTVIEW Landscape Services Agreement (BV-1-30-2017)

4. Insurance. During the Term, BrightView will maintain
general liability insurance, automobile liability insurance, and
workers’ compensation insurance covering its activities in
connection with the Services and any Work Order. Such
insurance shall be in commercially reasonable amounts.
Evidence of such insurance will be provided to Client upon
request.
5. Cooperation.
(a) Client will cooperate with BrightView to facilitate the
Services, and will permit or schedule adequate access to
the Landscape Site(s) as required to perform the
Services safely, efficiently, and within any specified
timeframes. Client will notify BrightView in writing of any
limitation on access to Landscape Site(s) as soon as
possible, and in any event at least 48 hours to any
scheduled delivery of services, goods, or materials.
(b) If required, Client will provide water with adequate spigots
or hydrants or such other items as identified on the Scope
of Landscape Services.
(c) Client shall provide written notice to BrightView of any
proposed change in the ownership or management of the
Landscape Site(s) at least 30 days prior to the effective
date of any such change. A change in the ownership or
management of the Landscape Site(s) shall not relieve
Client of its obligations hereunder, including but not
limited to the payment of the Service Fee and any
amounts due to BrightView with respect to any Work
Order, unless Client shall have given proper notice of
termination pursuant to this Agreement.
6. Service Fee.
(a) For Services performed pursuant to this Agreement,
Client shall pay BrightView an annual service fee of
$81,360.00 (The “Service Fee”), subject to annual
adjustments as described below.
(b) Client shall pay the Service Fee to BrightView in advance
through monthly payments according to the attached
Billing Information and Schedule ( See attached Billing
Schedule). If no Billing Information and Schedule is
attached to this Agreement or if the attached Billing
Information and Schedule does not specify the months
and amounts due, then the Service Fee shall be payable
in advance in
12
equal monthly installments,
beginning in the month of [January 2023). Monthly
payments are due not later than the 10th calendar day of
each month. Overdue Service Fees or Work Order
Charges shall be subject to an administrative charge
equal to the lower of: (i) 1.5% per month (18% per year)
and (ii) the highest rate permitted by law, in either case
multiplied by the unpaid balance. In addition to this
administrative charge, Client shall reimburse BrightView
Page 1
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(c)

(d)

7.
(a)
(b)

(c)

for all costs and expenses (including but not limited to
attorneys’ fees and court costs) which are reasonably
incurred by BrightView in collecting overdue Service
Fees, Work Order Charges, and administrative charges.
The parties hereby acknowledge that, notwithstanding
the Service Fee, the monthly installment plan, and any
Billing Information Schedule attached hereto, the types
and frequency of services, goods, and materials
furnished each month throughout the year may vary
according to seasonal requirements and best horticultural
practices. The monthly installment plan and Billing
Information and Schedule are implemented for Client’s
convenience of payment only and billings do not
necessarily reflect the actual cost or value of Services
performed during any particular month or other billing
period. If this Agreement is terminated for any reason on
a date other than an Anniversary Date, then all sums paid
by Client to BrightView for Services performed since the
most recent Anniversary Date shall be subtracted from
the time-and-materials value (as determined in good faith
by BrightView) of Services performed since that date and,
if the result is a positive number (a “Shortfall”), the
Shortfall shall become due and payable and Client shall
promptly pay such Shortfall to BrightView. A Shortfall is
not liquidated or other damages arising from a
termination of the Agreement but represents the portion
of the charges for Services performed prior to but unpaid
by Client as of the Termination Date. For the avoidance
of doubt, in no event will a Shortfall invoiced to the Client
exceed the total amount that would have been received
by the Service Provider had the terminated Agreement
continued uninterrupted until the end of its then current
term.
Unless specified otherwise in the attached Billing
Information and Schedule, every 12 months the Service
Fee shall be increased by an amount calculated by
multiplying the Service Fee for the immediately preceding
12 months by 3%.
Termination.
Either BrightView or Client may terminate this Agreement
without cause upon 60 days prior written notice to the
other party.
If either party materially breaches the terms of this
Agreement and fails to cure such breach within 30 days
after written notice from the non-breaching party
specifying such breach, then the non-breaching party
may elect to immediately terminate this Agreement by
written notice to the breaching party. In addition to and
without limiting the foregoing, if Client fails to timely pay
any Service Fees, Work Order Charges, or administrative
fees due under this Agreement, then BrightView may
elect, in its sole discretion, to (i) delay or cancel Services
without further notice to Client, and/or (ii) immediately
terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Client.
Either BrightView or Client may immediately terminate
this Agreement upon written notice to the other party if (i)
the other party makes an assignment for the benefit of
creditors, (ii) a petition of bankruptcy is filed by or against
the other party or (iii) all or substantially all of the other
party’s property is levied upon or scheduled to be sold in
a judicial proceeding.
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8. General Provisions.
(a) BrightView will at all times perform the Services and any
Work Order in accordance with all applicable workplace
safety requirements and standards promulgated by
federal and local authorities. BrightView will not at any
time provide safety evaluation, inspection, or consulting
services under this Agreement or any Work Order for the
benefit of Client or any third party and, consequently,
Client shall not rely on BrightView to provide such safetyrelated services at any time. Further, BrightView does
not and will not at any time provide representations,
warranties, or assurances as to the safety (or lack of
safety) of any Landscape Site(s) or Work Order site with
respect to periods before, during, or after Services are
performed or Work Order services are performed and,
consequently, Client shall not rely on BrightView to
provide any such assurances at any time. If Client
desires safety evaluation, inspection, or consulting
services, or safety representations, warranties, or
assurances, then BrightView and Client may execute and
enter into a separate written agreement whereby
BrightView will assist Client for an additional fee only in
identifying (without recommending) third-party service
providers that Client may then, in Client’s sole discretion,
elect to engage independently to obtain safety services
and/or assurances.
(b) This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the state
where the Services will be furnished. If the Services will
be furnished in more than one state, then the law of the
Commonwealth of Pennnsylvania will govern this
Agreement, except with regard to its conflicts of laws
doctrines. Both parties expressly agree that any and all
legal proceedings arising under this Agreement will be
brought exclusively in the state and federal courts located
in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
(c) Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior
written consent of the other party; provided, however, that
consent shall not be required to assign this Agreement to
any company which controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with BrightView or in connection with
assignment to an affiliate or pursuant to a merger, sale of
all or substantially all of its assets or equity securities,
consolidation, change of control or corporate
reorganization. This Agreement is binding on, and inures
to the benefit of, the parties hereto (including the record
owner of the Landscape Site(s) if other than Client) and
their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors
and assigns.
(d) This Agreement, together with any attached Billing
Information and Schedule, attached Scope of
Landscaping Services, Work Order hereunder, and any
other schedules and exhibits attached hereto, constitute
the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the
Services and Work Orders and supersedes all prior
contracts or agreements with respect to the Services or
Work Orders, whether oral or written.
(e) Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement
may be amended or modified from time to time only by a
written instrument executed and agreed to by both Client
and BrightView.
(f) The waiver by Client or BrightView of a breach of any
provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be
construed as a waiver of any other or subsequent breach
by Client or BrightView of such provision or any other
provision.
Page 2
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(g) BrightView's total liability for any losses, damages, and
expenses of any type whatsoever incurred by Client or
any of its affiliates, guests, tenants, invitees, and lessees
(“Losses”), which are caused by wrongful acts or
omissions of BrightView in connection with, or related to,
BrightView’s performance of the Services, shall be limited
solely to proven direct and actual damages in an
aggregate amount not to exceed the amounts actually
paid to BrightView hereunder. In no event will BrightView
be liable for special, indirect, incidental or consequential
damages, irrespective of the form or cause of action, in
contract, tort or otherwise, whether or not the possibility
of such damages has been disclosed to BrightView in
advance or could have been reasonably foreseen by
BrightView. Further, BrightView shall not be liable for any
Losses resulting from the provision of Services or
performance of any Work Order hereunder, if such
Losses are due to causes or conditions beyond its
reasonable control, including but not limited to Losses in any

way related to or associated with state or local water
regulations or mandates or BrightView’s compliance or good
faith efforts to comply with state or local water regulations or
mandates.
(h) BrightView’s performance will be excused to the extent
BrightView is unable to perform as a result of accidents,
acts of God, extreme weather conditions, inability to
secure labor and/or products, fire, earthquake and rules,
regulations or restrictions imposed by any government or
governmental agency, or other delays or failure of
performance beyond the commercially reasonable
control of BrightView. For purposes of this Agreement, the
parties agree specifically that water conservation regulations
or guidelines are specifically included within the above
referenced regulations or restrictions, and that BrightView
shall not be liable for any failure to perform as a direct or
indirect result of BrightView’s compliance with or good faith
efforts to comply with state or local water regulations or
mandates.

BrightView and Client hereby agree to the foregoing terms and conditions as of the date first set forth above.
By signing this Agreement in the space provided below, the undersigned Client signatory hereby represents
and confirms that it has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement on its own behalf and on behalf of the
record owner of each Landscape Site, and that this Agreement is a legally binding obligation of the undersigned and
the record owner of each Landscape Site.
BrightView Landscape Services, Inc.
By:
Name:
Title:
Date: Click here to enter a date.
CLIENT
By:
Name:
Title:
Date: Click here to enter a date.
BrightView Landscapes, LLC and each of its subsidiaries (“BrightView”) is committed to taking care of each other, our clients and
communities. The BrightView Code of Conduct, which is located at https://www.brightview.com/sites/default/files/bv_code_of_conduct.pdf
keeps us true to our values.
If you become aware of a violation of the BrightView Code, we encourage you to report it by:
•
•

Filing a report at www.brightviewconcerns.com; or
Calling our 24-hour, 7-day per week compliance hotline at (800) 461-9330.

Thank you for your confidence in partnering with BrightView.

BRIGHTVIEW Landscape Services Agreement (BV-1-30-2017)
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400400296

JOB #
ALPHA

This Billing Information and Schedule document is incorporated into the Landscape Services Agreement by this reference
upon execution by Client and Service Provider. In the event multiple Statements of Work or Work Orders are attached to this
Services Agreement as provided herein, each such Statement of Work or Work Order shall be mutually exclusive of each
other.

Billing Information and Schedule
Landscape
Site Name:*

Littleton Village Metropolitan District #2

Landscape
Site Location:

E. Dry Creek Road & S. Broadway
Littleton, CO 80122

Client
Business
Name:

Littleton Village Metropolitan District #2

Client Contact
Name:

Denise Denslow

Client
Contact
Telephone:

303-265-7910

Client Contact
Email:

denise.denslow@claconnect.net

Billing
Business
Name:

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Billing
Contact
Name:

Denise Denslow

Billing
Contact
Telephone:

303-265-7910

Billing
Contact
Address:

8390 E. Crescent Parkway, Suite 500
Greenwood Village, CO 80111

BrightView
Contact
Name:

Dennis Bedford

BrightView
Contact
Telephone:

303-356-3132
303-761-9262

2333 W Oxford Ave,
Englewood, CO 80110

Note: If this Agreement applies to multiple sites, then check here
information and pricing.

and attach a list of the sites with this

Billing Schedule:
LVMD #2 2023

January 1st
February 1

$ 6,780.00
st

$ 6,780.00

March 1st

$ 6,780.00

April 1st

$ 6,780.00

May 1st

$ 6,780.00

June 1st

$ 6,780.00

July 1st

$ 6,780.00

August 1st
September 1

$ 6,780.00
st

October 1st

$ 6,780.00
$ 6,780.00

November 1st

$ 6,780.00

December 1st

$ 6,780.00

Total Service Fee

$ 81,360.00

BrightView Landscape Services Agreement (BV-v1-30-2017)
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Scope of Landscape Services
Landscape
Site Name:*

Littleton Village Metropolitan District
#2

Landscape
Site Location:

E. Dry Creek Road & S. Broadway
Littleton, CO 80122

Client
Business
Name:

Littleton Village Metropolitan District
#2

Client Contact
Name:

Denise Denslow

Client
Contact
Telephone:

303-265-7910

Client Contact
Email:

denise.denslow@claconnect.net

Description of Services at this Landscape Site (attach diagrams if necessary):

“Service Specifications for Contract Landscape Management.”
I.

Scope of Work:
Contractor shall furnish all supervision, labor, material, equipment and transportation required to maintain the
landscape throughout the contract period, as specified herein.

II.

Turf Care:
A. Mowing: Included Frequencies:

26

Turf areas shall be mowed more frequently during the active growing season and as needed during other seasons.
Frequencies of mowing shall vary in the Spring and Fall due to seasonal weather conditions and turf growth rates.
During extended rainy or dry periods mowing will take place as conditions dictate. Mowing height will be based
on what is horticulturally correct for the turf variety taking into account the season.
Clippings shall be mulched and not caught or removed from turf areas unless they are lying in swaths which may
damage the lawn.
B. String Trimming: Included Frequencies 26
A. Vertical obstacles will be trimmed around to assure a neat and attractive appearance at the time of each mowing.
C. Edging: Included Frequencies 14
All turf areas adjacent to sidewalks shall be edged.
D. Blowing: Included Frequencies: 26
Sidewalk and curb areas adjacent to landscaped areas will be blown and kept clean with the use of power-operated
blowers at the time of each mowing. This does not include the blowing of car ports and/or parking lots.
E. Aeration: Included Frequencies: 1
Core aeration will be performed with walk behind and/or a tow behind aerator. Aeration plugs shall be left and
not caught or removed from the turf areas.
F.

Fertilization: Included Frequencies: 1 time slow release
Turf shall be fertilized as warranted with a commercial fertilizer to promote a healthy appearance.

G. Post Emergent Broadleaf Weed Control: Included Frequencies: 2
Turf shall be kept reasonably free of weeds by the use of chemical herbicide to promote a healthy appearance.
BrightView Landscape Services Agreement (BV-v1-30-2017)
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III.

Shrubs and Bed Areas:
B. Pruning:
a.

Shrub Pruning: Included Frequencies: 1
Shrubs shall be pruned to maintain the natural form of the plant and to maintain growth within space
limitations, timing of pruning may vary from plant species. This excludes pruning necessitated by storm
damage, disease, neglected overgrowth or winterkill. Industry standard pruning practices do not include hand
pruning or shearing of plants into boxes, squares, balls, etc., unless required by the design.

b.

Ornamental grasses will be cut one time per year, typically in late winter, to approximately ¼ of the existing
height.

c.

Perennial cut back will be done one time per year, typically in the fall. Perennial dead heading will be done
as necessary throughout the growing season.

C. Weed Control: Included Frequencies: 26
Beds, sidewalks and curb/gutter will be kept reasonably free or broadleaf or grassy weeds, preferably with preemergent and/or post-emergent/contact herbicides, or with manual removal (hand-pulling).
IV.

Tree Care:
A. Limbing: Included Frequencies: 1
Applies to low limbs for trees that have been previously maintained up to 10 feet. Low-hanging branches above
walkways and/or drive lanes that present a hazard to pedestrian or vehicular traffic will be pruned to a safe height
not to exceed 10 feet. This excludes pruning necessitated by storm damage, disease, neglected or overgrown or
winterkill.
B. Volunteer suckers and shooters on trees will be removed to maintain a clean appearance.
C. Tree rings will be chemically treated to control weeds and grass adjacent to tree trunks to establish a safe buffer
to protect trees.

V.

Native Areas:
A. Native Mowing: Included Frequencies:

2

Designated native areas will be mowed to a height of 3”-5”.
B. Broadleaf Spot Spray Native Areas: Included Frequencies: 2
Native areas shall receive 2 spot treatments of weed control per season.
VI.

Irrigation System:
A. Activation: Included Frequencies: 1
Seasonal activation of the irrigation system will be performed in the spring as weather conditions dictate.
Contractor will be responsible for determining when to activate the system. At the time of activation, all
necessary repairs will be performed to bring the system up to operating condition. Repairs will be performed
and billed on a time and material or not to exceed basis as outlined in Exhibit B at the expense of the
Owner/Client.
B. Monitoring: Included Frequencies: 14
Monitoring of the system will occur throughout the growing season. Programing may be periodically adjusted
according to weather conditions, seasonal changes, and the needs of the landscape. In the event any
malfunctions are found, repair will be performed and billed on a time and material or not to exceed basis at
the expense of the Owner/Client. Damages caused by BrightVeiw Landscape Services, Inc. during the normal
course of operations will be repaired by BrightView Landscape Services, Inc. in a prompt manner at no
expense to the Owner/Client.

During extended cold or rainy periods, landscape irrigation may be shut off. Occasional rainstorms or cold
weather may not constitute an adequate reason for full system shut/down protection.

BrightView Landscape Services Agreement (BV-v1-30-2017)
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Unless indicated in Exhibit B, meter reading, usage tracking and reporting is not included but can be
performed on a time and material basis if requested by Owner/Client
C. Deactivation / Winterization: Included Frequencies: 1
Seasonal deactivation and winterization of the irrigation system will be performed in the fall of each year,
typically in October or November, depending upon weather conditions. The irrigation system will be drained
of water and will have forced air injected into the lateral and pressure lines.
Exterior backflow wrapping or draining is not included but may be performed and billed at Quote per device
if weather warrants. Backflow wrapping or draining prevents freeze damage when the system is pressurized.
D. Emergency Service Calls:
Emergency service calls will be made upon request of the Owner/Client. Emergencies are rare and are usually
related to main line breaks or faulty valves that may cause flooding. Emergencies are defined as after-hours
calls between the hours of 5:00pm and 8:00am Monday-Friday, all day Saturday and Sunday, and recognized
holidays. Emergency services will be performed upon request and billed on a time and material or not to
exceed basis at the expense of the Owner/Client.
VII.

Landscape Debris & Trash Cleanup:
A. Growing Season: Included Frequencies: 26
All landscape areas shall be inspected on days of mowing service and excess landscape debris and trash removed.
Unless otherwise indicated in Exhibit B, debris clean-up does not include the cleanup of pet waste or pet waste
stations, trash cans, parking lots, or parking structures, nor does it include clean-up of debris and trash caused by
vandalism, dumping, improperly contained dumpsters, or acts of God. These items will be billed on a time and
materials basis upon approval of Owner/Client.
B. Dormant Season: Included Frequencies: 26
All landscape areas shall be inspected and excess landscape debris and trash removed. Unless otherwise indicated
in Exhibit B, debris clean-up does not include the cleanup of pet waste or pet stations, trash cans, parking lots, or
parking structures, nor does it include cleanup of debris and trash caused by vandalism, dumping, improperly
contained dumpsters, or acts of God. These items will be billed on a time and materials basis upon approval of
Owner/Client.
B. Spring Cleanup: Included Frequencies: 1
Debris shall be picked up and disposed of from maintained turf and rock/mulch bed areas. Debris shall be managed
using all means available including blowing, raking, vacuuming, and mowing/mulching to maintain a neat appearance.
Weather conditions may shorten or lengthen the process of debris removal. Unless otherwise outlined in Exhibit B.
debris cleanup does not include the cleanup of pet waste or pet waste stations, trash cans, parking lots, or parking
structures, nor does it include clean-up of debris and trash caused by vandalism, dumping, improperly contained
dumpsters, or acts of God.
Fall Cleanup: Included Frequencies: 1
Typically in November, fallen leaves shall be picked up and disposed of from maintained turf and rock/mulch bed
areas. Leaves shall be managed using all means available including blowing, raking, vacuuming, and
mowing/mulching to maintain a neat appearance. Weather conditions may shorten or lengthen the process of leaf
removal. Unless indicated in Exhibit B leaves that have not fallen from trees or shrubs during contract term are not
within the scope of the contract. Leaf cleanup in October will be performed during regular scheduled mowing visits.
Upon request, a price will be provided for additional services.
Unless otherwise outlined in Exhibit B, debris clean-up does not include the cleanup of pet waste or pet waste stations,
trash cans, parking lots, or parking structures, nor does it include cleanup of debris and trash caused by vandalism,
dumping, improperly contained dumpsters, or acts of God.

XII.

Bio-Hazards:
Contractor shall not be responsible for policing, picking up, removing or disposing of certain materials that may be
bio-hazards on the Owner/Client's property. This includes, but is not limited to, items such as hypodermic needles
(Sharps/needles) will not be handled by the Contractor’s employees at any time), condoms, feminine hygiene products,
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clothing or materials used in the process of cleaning up bodily fluids. Contractor shall only be obligated to
report/communicate any observations of potential bio-hazards to the Owner/Client for their appropriate removal by
others, unless previously arranged by the Owner/Client and Contractor.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES AVAILABLE
Beyond those services made a part of the base contract, BrightView Landscape Services, Inc. offers a number of
additional landscape management services to help beautify, protect, and keep safe your landscape. These services
include:
Client
Initials

Service Description
Irrigation repairs
Time and Material
$70/hour
Emergency response Time
and Material $140/hour

Frequencies
Per Year
TBD

Service Price Per
Occurrence
Repairs not to exceed
$600 per cycle visit
without prior
authorization

TBD

TBD

BrightView Landscape Services Agreement (BV-v1-30-2017)
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ADDENDUM TO LANDSCAPE SERVICES AGREEMENT
THIS ADDENDUM (“Addendum”) modifies the LANDSCAPE SERVICES
AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) entered into as of October 1, 2022 by and between Littleton
Village Metropolitan District No. 2, a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of
the State of Colorado (the “District”), and Brightview Landscape Services, Inc., a Colorado
corporation (the “Contractor”).
In consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
is hereby acknowledged, the Contractor and District hereby modify the Agreement as follows:
1.
Terms of Addendum Controlling. The parties expressly intend and agree that this
Addendum is hereby incorporated into the Agreement and the terms herein shall modify and
control the terms in the Agreement. Any inconsistency between the terms of this Addendum and
the terms of the Agreement shall be resolved in favor of the terms contained in this Addendum.
2.
Insurance. The Contractor represents, warrants, and agrees that it has and shall
maintain state minimum Workers’ Compensation insurance coverage for its employees, if any.
The Contractor shall also maintain broad form general liability, property damage, and
automotive liability insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 for bodily injury, death, or
damage to property of any person and $2,000,000 in the aggregate. All insurance policies
(except Workers’ Compensation) shall include the District as an additional insured. At the
request of the District, the Contractor shall provide the District with documentation evidencing
such coverages.
3.
Independent Contractor. The services to be performed by Contractor are those of
an independent contractor and not of an employee or partner of the District. Contractor is
obligated to pay federal and state income tax on any moneys earned pursuant to this Agreement.
Neither Contractor nor its employees, if any, are entitled to Workers’ Compensation benefits
from the District for the performance of the services specified in this Agreement.
4.
Limitation on District Indemnity. Any obligation of the District to indemnify,
defend, or hold harmless Contractor is deleted. Notwithstanding any provision in the
Agreement, the District does not waive and shall retain all of the immunities, protections, rights,
procedures, and limitations provided to the District under the Colorado Governmental Immunity
Act, § 24-10-101 et seq., C.R.S.
5.
Limitation on Damages. Under no circumstances shall the District be liable to
Contractor for special, punitive, indirect or consequential damages suffered by Contractor arising
out of or in connection with this Agreement, including without limitation lost profits, loss of use,
or loss of opportunity.
6.
Notices. All notices which are required or which may be given under this
Agreement shall be effective when hand delivered, sent via nationally recognized overnight
courier, or 3 days after mailing via first class mail, postage prepaid and sent to the address first
set forth in the Agreement.
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7.
Taxes. The District is a governmental entity and is therefore exempt from state
and local sales and use tax. The District will not pay for or reimburse any sales or use tax that
may not directly be imposed against the District. The Contractor shall use the District’s sales tax
exemption for the purchase of any and all products and equipment on behalf of the District.
8.
Annual Appropriation. Pursuant to Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado
Constitution and Section 29-1-110, C.R.S., the District’s obligations hereunder are subject to the
annual appropriation of funds necessary for the performance thereof, which appropriations will
be made in the sole discretion of the District’s Board of Directors.
9.
Jurisdiction, Law; Venue. The laws of the State of Colorado shall govern the
construction, interpretation, execution and enforcement of this Agreement. Jurisdiction and
venue for any dispute between the Parties arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be in
the State of Colorado District Court for the county in which the District is located.
10.
No Third Party Beneficiaries. The Parties to this Agreement do not intend to
benefit any person not a party to this Agreement. No person or entity, other than the Parties to
this Agreement, shall have any right, legal or equitable, to enforce any provision of this
Agreement
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Addendum to be
effective as of the date first set forth above.
BrightView Landscape Services, Inc.
By:
Name:
Title:

Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2
By:
Name:
Title:
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MONTHLY MAINTENANCE REPORT
September 2022
FOR: Littleton Village
SUBMITTED BY:

Dennis Bedford

DATE: 10/5/2022

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
General
Services/
Updates:

We have moved to our modified mow schedule for every other week throughout
October. We will be performing contracted services one weeks 1 and 3.
We have been working on priority mulching areas throughout the years while
working with the year’s current landscape budget. We are currently waiting on
the remaining inventory of Cherry Brown Mulch and will complete the remainder
of the priority areas 10/10.
The native has been mowed in as of 10/4 and weed control applied.
Fall clean ups will start in late October/early November when most of the leaves
have fallen and plants have gone dormant for the year.

Shrubs/Trees:

Dead shrubs have been removed as one offs periodically throughout the year
with no replacements.
We have completed the shrub pruning for the year but will continue to prune
problem areas, as necessary. The ornamental grasses will be cut closer to
spring along with our spring cleanup.
We performed our contracted tree limbing for low hanging tree limbs as of 9/19.

Irrigation:

Irrigation has been backed off to 75-80% and will continue to taper until we
perform the blowouts
We will start irrigation blowouts and winterization the week of 10/17. We don’t
have a definite date on the blow as the schedule is very fluid based issues that
may arise at other properties. If there is a freeze warning, we will isolate and
drain all necessary areas to avoid freeze damage.

General
Updates:

Snow and Landscape contracts have been drafted and sent as of 9/30.
We have seen some good moisture in the late season and even snow
accumulation in the high country.
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
RESOLUTION TO AMEND 2022 BUDGET
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2
adopted the budget and appropriated funds for the 2022 fiscal year as follows:
General Fund
Maintenance Fund
Debt Service Fund

$
$
$

WHEREAS, additional expenditures in the ________ Fund are necessary resulting in
expenditures in excess of appropriations for the 2022 fiscal year; and
WHEREAS, such additional expenditures are contingencies which could not have been
reasonably foreseen at the time of adoption of the budget.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2, ARAPAHOE COUNTY, STATE
OF COLORADO THAT:
1.
The Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2 hereby adopts a supplemental
budget and appropriation for the 2022 fiscal year as follows:
General Fund
Debt Service Fund
Capital Fund

$
$
$

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such sums are hereby appropriated for expenditure
from any available funds in the Fund specified above in accordance with the provisions of §29-1109, C.R.S.

[Signature Page Follows]
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APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 18TH DAY OF OCTOBER 2022.

LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT NO. 2

By:
Phil Cernanec, President

Attest:

Zach Tedeschi, Secretary

LVMD2
2022 Budget Amendment
Page 2
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Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2
Annual Budget
For Year Ending December 31, 2023

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION

118

LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
SUMMARY
2023 BUDGET
WITH 2021 ACTUAL AND 2022 ESTIMATED
For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

10/12/2022

ACTUAL
2021

BUDGET
2022

ACTUAL
6/30/2022

ESTIMATED
2022

BUDGET
2023

$ 1,683,452

$ 2,204,588

$ 2,235,998

$ 2,235,998

$ 2,368,884

1,049,636
72,340
1,157
4,140
401,774
32,614
100
172,283
42,005
104,091

1,177,935
82,455
2,100
4,140
422,000
38,000
176,243
45,000
-

1,163,949
36,263
6,090
2,063
213,618
35,997
156,459
20,909
-

1,177,935
74,300
12,100
4,140
422,000
6,393
38,000
161,812
45,000
-

1,185,629
71,138
15,100
4,140
422,000
27,784
38,000
166,095
45,000
-

Total revenues

1,880,140

1,947,873

1,635,348

1,941,680

1,974,886

Total funds available

3,563,592

4,152,461

3,871,346

4,177,678

4,343,770

108,133
404,793
814,668

180,000
460,000
1,254,000

59,585
206,189
302,980

141,456
428,485
1,238,853

175,000
482,000
1,231,236

1,327,594

1,894,000

568,754

1,808,794

1,888,235

1,327,594

1,894,000

568,754

1,808,794

1,888,235

ENDING FUND BALANCES

$ 2,235,998

$ 2,258,461

$ 3,302,592

$ 2,368,884

$ 2,455,534

REQUIRED RESERVE - SERIES 2015
SURPLUS RESERVE - SERIES 2015
EMERGENCY RESERVE
TOTAL RESERVE

$

$

$

$

$

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES
REVENUES
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Net investment income
Administrative fee
Maintenance fee
Maintenance fee - transfer from District #3
Domestic water fee
Other revenue
Transfer from District No. 3
Public improvement fees
Transfer from District No. 1

EXPENDITURES
General Fund
Maintenance Fund
Debt Service Fund
Total expenditures
Total expenditures and transfers out
requiring appropriation

880,075
1,101,644
23,100
$ 2,004,819

880,075
1,083,000
21,600
$ 1,984,675

880,075
1,083,000
21,600
$ 1,984,675

880,075
1,083,000
22,100
$ 1,985,175

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
1
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880,075
1,083,000
22,400
$ 1,985,475
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
PROPERTY TAX SUMMARY INFORMATION
2023 BUDGET
WITH 2021 ACTUAL AND 2022 ESTIMATED
For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

ASSESSED VALUATION
Residential
Residential - Single-Family
Residential - Multi-Family
Commercial
State assessed
Vacant land
Personal property
Certified Assessed Value

ACTUAL
2021

BUDGET
2022

ACTUAL
6/30/2022

ESTIMATED
2022

$ 18,271,770
300,468
284,160
435
$ 18,856,833

$ 20,537,137
303,471
320,860
435
$ 21,161,903

$ 20,537,137
303,471
320,860
435
$ 21,161,903

$ 20,537,137
303,471
320,860
435
$ 21,161,903

11.132
44.531

11.132
44.531

11.132
44.531

11.132
44.531

11.525
46.105

55.663

55.663

55.663

55.663

57.630

MILL LEVY
General
Debt Service
Total mill levy
PROPERTY TAXES
General
Debt Service

$

Levied property taxes
Adjustments to actual/rounding
Budgeted property taxes

BUDGETED PROPERTY TAXES
General
Debt Service

10/12/2022

209,914
839,714

$

235,574
942,361

1,049,628
8

1,177,935
-

$ 1,049,636

$ 1,177,935

$

$

209,916
839,720

$ 1,049,636

235,574
942,361

$ 1,177,935

$

235,574
942,361

$

1,177,935
(13,986)

235,574
942,361

BUDGET
2023

$

13,284,740
6,702,080
299,570
2,820
435
283,484
$ 20,573,129

$

237,105
948,524

1,177,935
-

1,185,629
-

$ 1,163,949

$ 1,177,935

$ 1,185,629

$

$

$

232,777
931,172

$ 1,163,949

$ 1,177,935

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
2
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235,574
942,361

237,105
948,524

$ 1,185,629
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
GENERAL FUND
2023 BUDGET
WITH 2021 ACTUAL AND 2022 ESTIMATED
For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,
ACTUAL
2021
BEGINNING FUND BALANCES

$

REVENUES
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Net investment income
Other revenue

BUDGET
2022
-

$

97,047

10/12/2022

ACTUAL
6/30/2022
$

116,453

ESTIMATED
2022
$

116,453

BUDGET
2023
$

225,471

209,916
14,467
103
100

235,574
16,490
100
-

232,777
7,252
33
-

235,574
14,800
100
-

237,105
14,226
100
-

Total revenues

224,586

252,164

240,062

250,474

251,432

Total funds available

224,586

349,211

356,515

366,927

476,903

EXPENDITURES
General and administrative
County Treasurer's fees
Accounting
Audit
Dues and licenses
District management
Legal services
Election expense
Contingency
District No. 1's expenses
Transfer to District No. 1
Total expenditures

3,150
37,039
3,000
836
26,698
18,391
2,506
16,513
108,133

3,534
42,000
4,000
1,000
38,000
50,000
10,000
6,466
25,000
180,000

3,492
21,907
422
10,417
14,408
4,233
4,706
59,585

3,534
44,000
3,500
422
30,000
40,000
5,000
15,000
141,456

3,557
48,000
4,000
1,000
33,000
44,000
10,000
6,443
25,000
175,000

108,133

180,000

59,585

141,456

175,000

Total expenditures and transfers out
requiring appropriation
ENDING FUND BALANCES

$

116,453

$

169,211

$

296,930

$

225,471

$

301,903

EMERGENCY RESERVE
TOTAL RESERVE

$
$

6,800
6,800

$
$

7,600
7,600

$
$

7,600
7,600

$
$

7,600
7,600

$
$

7,600
7,600

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
MAINTENANCE FUND
2023 BUDGET
WITH 2021 ACTUAL AND 2022 ESTIMATED
For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,
ACTUAL
2021
BEGINNING FUND BALANCES

$

REVENUES
Administrative fee
Maintenance fee
Domestic water fee
Maintenance fee - transfer from District #3
Transfer from District No. 1

BUDGET
2022
-

$

121,511

ACTUAL
6/30/2022
$

137,826

10/12/2022
ESTIMATED
2022
$

137,826

BUDGET
2023
$

179,874

4,140
401,774
32,614
104,091

4,140
422,000
38,000
-

2,063
213,618
35,997
-

4,140
422,000
38,000
6,393
-

4,140
422,000
38,000
27,784
-

Total revenues

542,619

464,140

251,678

470,533

491,924

Total funds available

542,619

585,651

389,504

608,359

671,798

31,453
15,997
26,940
5,161

33,000
16,000
38,000
6,500

11,718
11,369
10,417
116

22,000
11,369
30,000
116

24,000
13,000
33,000
8,000

1,412
8,463
13,313
32,614
57,497
66,015
41,616
78,972
25,340
404,793

1,500
9,000
20,000
38,000
42,000
90,000
48,000
88,000
30,000
460,000

4,270
4,501
19,255
17,821
61,191
19,952
39,486
6,093
206,189

1,000
9,000
15,000
38,000
60,000
90,000
42,000
80,000
30,000
428,485

1,000
15,000
25,000
38,000
65,000
90,000
48,000
82,000
40,000
482,000

404,793

460,000

206,189

428,485

482,000

EXPENDITURES
General and administrative
Billing services
Insurance and bonds
Property management
Contingency
Operations and maintenance
Electricity and utility inspections
Pet waste removal
Irrigation repairs
Domestic water
Irrigation water
Snow removal
Trash
Landscape maintenance
Landscape repairs
Total expenditures
Total expenditures and transfers out
requiring appropriation
ENDING FUND BALANCES

$

137,826

$

125,651

$

183,315

$

179,874

$

189,798

EMERGENCY RESERVE
TOTAL RESERVE

$
$

16,300
16,300

$
$

14,000
14,000

$
$

14,000
14,000

$
$

14,500
14,500

$
$

14,800
14,800

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
DEBT SERVICE FUND
2023 BUDGET
WITH 2021 ACTUAL AND 2022 ESTIMATED
For the Years Ended and Ending December 31,

10/12/2022

ACTUAL
2021

BUDGET
2022

ACTUAL
6/30/2022

ESTIMATED
2022

BUDGET
2023

$ 1,683,452

$ 1,986,030

$ 1,981,719

$ 1,981,719

$ 1,963,539

839,720
57,873
1,054
172,283
42,005

942,361
65,965
2,000
176,243
45,000

931,172
29,011
6,057
156,459
20,909

942,361
59,500
12,000
161,812
45,000

948,524
56,911
15,000
166,095
45,000

Total revenues

1,112,935

1,231,569

1,143,608

1,220,673

1,231,530

Total funds available

2,796,387

3,217,599

3,125,327

3,202,392

3,195,069

12,602
11,100
2,047

14,135
7,000
5,147
3,000

13,970
4,100
2,051

14,135
11,000
3,000

14,228
11,000
4,314
3,500

572,169
120,000
96,750
814,668

565,718
140,000
519,000
1,254,000

282,859
302,980

565,718
140,000
505,000
1,238,853

558,194
150,000
490,000
1,231,236

814,668

1,254,000

302,980

1,238,853

1,231,236

ENDING FUND BALANCES

$ 1,981,719

$ 1,963,599

$ 2,822,347

$ 1,963,539

$ 1,963,833

REQUIRED RESERVE - SERIES 2015
SURPLUS RESERVE - SERIES 2015
TOTAL RESERVE

$

$

$

$

$

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES
REVENUES
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Net investment income
Transfer from District No. 3
Public improvement fees

EXPENDITURES
General and administrative
County Treasurer's fees
Paying agent fees
Contingency
PIF collection fee
Debt Service
Bond interest - Series 2015
Bond principal - Series 2015
Bond interest - Series 2018B
Total expenditures
Total expenditures and transfers out
requiring appropriation

880,075
1,101,644
$ 1,981,719

880,075
1,083,000
$ 1,963,075

880,075
1,083,000
$ 1,963,075

880,075
1,083,000
$ 1,963,075

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2023 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS

Services Provided
The District, a quasi-municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, was
organized by order and decree of the District Court for Arapahoe County on February 12, 2014, and is
governed pursuant to provisions of the Colorado Special District Act (Title 32, Article 1, Colorado Revised
Statutes). The District operates under a Service Plan approved by the City on September 5, 2006, and
as modified on September 3, 2013. The District’s service area is located entirely within the City of
Littleton, Arapahoe County, Colorado.
The District was established to provide financing for the construction, installation, and operation of public
improvements, including water, sanitation, streets, safety protection, storm drainage, covenant
enforcement and design review services, and parks and recreation facilities.
On November 5, 2013 the District’s voters approved for an annual increase in taxes and public
improvements fees of $5,000,000 each for general operations and maintenance and $40,000,000 for
payment due pursuant to intergovernmental agreements (IGA). The District also approved general
obligation indebtedness of $40,000,000 for each of the following: street improvements, parks and
recreation facilities, a potable and non-potable water supply, a sanitation system, a transportation system,
mosquito control facilities, traffic and safety controls, fire protection, television relay and translation
system, security services, and debt refinancing. Additionally, the District’s electors authorized the District
to collect, retain and spend all revenue annually, other than ad valorem taxes, without regard to limitations
under TABOR.
The District’s service plan limits the total debt issuance to $40,000,000. The Maximum Debt Mill Levy the
District is permitted to impose is 50.000 mills for any Debt which exceeds fifty percent of the District’s
assessed valuation. For the portion of any Debt which is equal to or less than fifty percent of the District’s
assessed valuation, either on the date of issuance or at any time thereafter, the mill levy to be imposed
to repay such portion of Debt shall not be subject to the Maximum Debt Mill Levy and, as a result, the
mill levy may be such amount as is necessary to pay the Debt service on such Debt, without limitation of
rate.
The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the
requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates as of the date of
the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions and its expected course of
actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District believes are significant to the
budget. There will usually be differences between the budget and actual results, because events and
circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material.
Revenues
Property Taxes
Property taxes are levied by the District’s Board of Directors. The levy is based on assessed valuations
determined by the County Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The levy is normally set by
December 15 by certification of the County Commissioners to put the tax lien on the individual properties
as of January 1 of the following year. The County Treasurer collects the determined taxes during the
ensuing calendar year.
6
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2023 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Revenues – (continued)
The taxes are payable by April or, if in equal installments, at the taxpayer’s election, in February and
June. Delinquent taxpayers are notified in August and generally sales of the tax liens on delinquent
properties are held in November or December. The County Treasurer remits the taxes collected monthly
to the District.
The District’s Service Plan provides that the District’s mill levy may be adjusted to take into account
legislative or constitutionally imposed adjustments in assessed values or the method of their calculation,
so that, to the extent possible, the actual revenues generated are neither diminished or enhanced as a
result of such changes. Among other adjustments, a change in the ratio of actual valuation of assessable
property (assessment ratio) shall be deemed a change in method of calculating assessed valuation.
The calculation of the taxes levied is displayed on the Property Tax Summary page of the budget using
the adopted mill levy imposed by the District.
Senate Bill 21-293 among other things, designates multi-family residential real property (defined
generally, as property that is a multi-structure of four or more units) as a new subclass of residential real
property. For tax collection year 2023, the assessment rate for single family residential property
decreases to 6.95% from 7.15%. The rate for multifamily residential property, the newly created subclass,
decreases to 6.80% from 7.15%. Agricultural and renewable energy production property decreases to
26.4% from 29.0%. Producing oil and gas remains at 87.5%. All other nonresidential property stays at
29%.
The change in assessment ratio allows the District to adjust its mill levy. Accordingly, the District adjusted
its mill levy to 11.525 for operations and 46.105 for debt service.
Specific Ownership Taxes
Specific ownership taxes are set by the State and collected by the County Treasurer, primarily on vehicle
licensing within the County as a whole. The specific ownership taxes are allocated by the County
Treasurer to all taxing entities within the County. The budget assumes that the District’s share will be
equal to approximately 6% of the property taxes collected.
Net Investment Income
Interest earned on the District’s available funds has been estimated based on historical interest earnings.
Public Improvement Fees
The District charges public improvement fees (PIF). The nature of the PIF is that of a fee imposed under
private contract and not through the exercise of any governmental taxing authority. The PIF is applied to
the sales of good at a rate of .75%, in addition to all the sales and use taxes that maybe imposed and is
collected by the retailers in the District and remitted to the District within 20 days after the month end.

7
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2023 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Revenues – (continued)
Maintenance Fees
The District established a maintenance fee of $208 per quarter for each Single-Family residential unit,
$278 per quarter for each Multi-Family residential unit, $69 per quarter for each condo/apartment unit,
and $126 per quarter for each vacant lot. The maintenance fee revenue is used for the purpose of paying
direct and indirect costs related to the facilities and maintenance services.
Domestic Water Fees
The District established a domestic water fee of $69 per quarter for each Multi-Family residential unit.
The domestic water fee revenue is used for the purpose of paying the domestic water expenses paid for
by the District.
Administrative Fees
The District established an administrative fee of $2.50 per month for each Multi-Family residential unit.
The administrative fee revenue is used for the purpose of defraying the cost of providing administrative
services provided by the District.
Transfer from District No. 3
Pursuant to the Capital Pledge Agreement, entered into on June 6, 2014 and amended on September 1,
2018, between the District and District No. 3, District No. 3 is obligated to impose ad valorem property
taxes for the payment of the Series 2014 Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 Senior Bonds, and Series
2018B Subordinate Limited Bonds.
Expenditures
Treasurer’s Fees
County Treasurer’s fees have been computed at 1.5% of property tax collections.
Debt Service
Principal and interest payments in 2023 are provided based upon the debt amortization schedule from
the Series 2015 Bonds discussed under Debt and Leases. Additionally, payments on Series 2014A,
2014B and 2018B Bonds are based on the amount of funds available. Therefore, a scheduled
amortization has not been included in the budget.

8
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2023 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS

Debt and Leases
Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2014
On June 4, 2014, the District authorized the issuance of Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A (the
“Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of up to $12,165,000. The principal amount of the Bonds
deemed issued from time to time shall equal the amount of Acknowledged Advances made under the
Construction Funding Loan Agreement whereby which the Developer advances the funds to cover capital
costs and such advances are converted to bond proceeds through the process of Bond Counsel issuing
an opinion on each Acknowledged Advance. The District also issued Taxable Subordinate Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2014B (the “Subordinate Bonds”) in the authorized principal amount of up to
$3,335,000, in order to provide for the repayment of Acknowledged Advances in excess of $12,165,000.
The principal balance of the Bonds shall bear an interest at the rate of 8.00%, payable semi-annually on
each June 15 and December 15, commencing June 15, 2015, and shall mature on December 15, 2044.
To the extent interest on the Bonds is not paid when due, such interest shall compound annually, on each
December 15. To the extent principal of the Bonds is not paid when due, such principal shall remain
outstanding until paid. The Subordinate Bonds shall bear the same interest rate of 8.00% and to be
payable only after the payment in full of the Bonds.
The Bonds are secured and payable from the Pledged Revenue, consisting of moneys derived by the
District from the following sources, net of collection costs: (1) property tax revenues, (2) specific
ownership tax revenues, (3) PIF revenues, and (4) any other legally available moneys which the District
determines to credit to the Bond Fund. Pledged Revenue for the repayment on the Bonds also includes
revenues resulting from District No. 3’s imposition of the District No. 3 Required Mill Levy.
The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the District, as a whole or in part,
on any date thereafter, upon payment of par and accrued interest, without redemption premium. The
Bonds is subject to mandatory redemption in part on December 15 of each year, commencing December
15, 2015 to the extent of moneys on deposit.
Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2015
On December 17, 2015, the District issued Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds,
Series 2015, in the amount of $10,830,000. The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds
are used for the purposes of (i) refunding a portion of the District’s currently outstanding Subordinate
Special Revenue Bond, Series 2014A; (ii) providing capitalized interest for the Series 2015 Senior Bonds;
(iii) funding a Reserve Fund securing the Series 2015 Senior Bonds; and, (iv) paying costs of issuance
of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds.
The Series 2015 Senior Bonds bear interest at 5.375%, payable semi-annually on June 1 and December
1, beginning on June 1, 2016. Annual mandatory sinking fund principal payments are due on December
1, beginning on December 1, 2019. The Series 2015 Senior Bonds mature on December 1, 2045, and
are subject to optional redemption as described in the Indenture.

9

PRELIMINARY DRAFT - SUBJECT TO REVISION

127

LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2023 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Debt and Leases – (continued)
The Series 2015 Senior Bonds are secured by and payable solely from Pledged Revenue, which includes
property taxes derived from the Required Mill Levy net of the cost of collection, Specific Ownership Taxes
attributable to the Required Mill Levy, Pledged PIF Revenues, PILOT revenues (if any), and any other
legally available moneys of the District which the District deposits with the Trustee for application as
Pledged Revenue. The forecast does not include Pledged PIF or PILOT revenues. The Series 2015
Senior Bonds are also secured by amounts held in the Reserve Fund, which is to be funded upon
issuance of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds in the amount of the Required Reserve anticipated to equal
$880,075, and amounts accumulated in the Surplus Fund, if any. In accordance with the Indenture,
amounts on deposit in the Surplus Fund are to be released to the District when the Series 2015 Senior
Bonds are defeased or paid in full.
Pledged Revenue that is not needed to pay debt service on the Series 2015 Senior Bonds in any year
will be deposited to and held in the Surplus Fund, up to the Maximum Surplus Amount of 10% of par
value of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds, or $1,083,000. Under the Indenture, the Surplus Fund is
terminated upon defeasance or payment in full of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds. The District has
acknowledged that State Law places certain restrictions on the use of money derived from the Required
Mill Levy. Required Mill Levy means an ad valorem mill levy imposed upon all taxable property of the
District and District No. 3 each year in an amount sufficient, to pay the principal and interest on the Bonds
as the same become due, and to replenish the Surplus Fund to the Maximum Surplus Amount, but not
in excess of 50.000 mills (subject to adjustment for changes occurring in the method of calculating
assessed valuation). The maximum Required Mill Levy has been adjusted to 55.663.
Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2018B
On September 6, 2018, the District issued Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2018B, in the amount of $5,700,000. Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds were
used for the purposes of (i) refunding a portion of the 2014A and 2014B Bonds and (ii) paying costs in
connection with the issuance of the Bonds.
The Series 2018B Subordinate Limited Bonds were issued at the rate of 7.625% per annum and payable
annually on December 15, beginning December 15, 2018, from, and to the extent of, Subordinate
Pledged Revenue, subject to limitations of the Indenture, and mature on December 15, 2028. The Bonds
are structured as cash flow bonds meaning that there are no scheduled payments of principal prior to the
final maturity date. Unpaid interest on the Bonds compounds annually on each December 15 at the rate
then borne by the Bonds. In the event any amount due and owing on the Bonds remains outstanding on
December 15, 2055, such amount shall be deemed discharged and no longer be due and outstanding.
The Series 2018B Subordinate Limited Bonds are secured by and payable solely from Subordinate
Pledged Revenue, which is that portion of Pledged Revenue available after application of the Pledged
Revenue to the payment of Series 2015 Senior Bonds.
The Indenture requires that, so long as any Series 2015 Senior Bonds are outstanding, the District must
transfer all Pledged Revenue to the Senior Obligation Trustee for the payment of Senior Obligations. Any
Pledged Revenue not needed to pay Series 2015 Senior Bonds, or to replenish the Reserve Fund or
fund the Surplus Fund, are required to be deposited in the Subordinate Bond Fund and be applied to the
payment of the Subordinate Bonds.
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2023 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Debt and Leases – (continued)
When the Series 2015 Senior Bonds are no longer outstanding, the District is required to deposit all
Pledged Revenue with the Trustee for the payment of the Subordinate Bonds.
The Series 2018B Subordinate Limited Bonds constitute Subordinate Obligations under the 2015 Senior
Indenture, and the Series 2015 Senior Bonds constitute Senior Obligations under the Indenture. The
moneys constituting the Subordinate Pledged Revenue, which are pledged to the payment of the Bonds,
are derived from the same sources of revenues as the moneys pledged to the payment of the 2015
Senior Indenture to pay the Series 2015 Senior Bonds, and the lien thereon is junior and subordinate in
all respects to the lien of the Series 2015 Senior Bonds and any other Senior Obligations which may be
issued by the Issuing District in the future.
Principal and interest payments will be as cash flow is available.
The following is analysis of anticipated changes in the District’s long-term obligations for the years ending
December 31, 2022 and 2023.
Anticipated
Balance -

Balance -

December 31,

December 31,

2021

Additions

Retirements

2022

Subordinate Special Revenue
Bonds, Series 2014A

$

665,293

$

-

$

-

$

665,293

Subordinate Special Revenue
Bonds, Series 2014B

914,350

-

-

914,350

194,638

68,794

-

263,432

383,936

103,863

-

487,799

10,525,000

-

140,000

10,385,000

Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Special Rev Bonds, Series 2014A
Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Special Rev Bonds, Series 2014B
Limited Tax G.O. and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015
Bond Issue Discount - Series 2015

(29,492)

-

(1,786)

(27,706)

Subordinate Limited Tax G.O. and
Special Revenue Refunding,
Bonds Series 2018B

5,700,000

Bond Issue Discount - Series 2018B

-

(139,355)

-

-

(11,166)

5,700,000
(128,189)

Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Limited Tax G.O. and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2018
Total

1,482,591
$ 19,696,961

547,688
$

720,345

$

11
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632,048

$ 19,785,258
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2023 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS

Debt and Leases – (continued)
Anticipated

Anticipated

Balance -

Balance -

December 31,

December 31,

2022

Additions

Retirements

2023

Subordinate Special Revenue
Bonds, Series 2014A

$

665,293

$

-

$

-

$

665,293

Subordinate Special Revenue
Bonds, Series 2014B

914,350

-

-

914,350

263,432

74,298

-

337,730

487,799

112,172

-

599,971

10,385,000

-

150,000

10,235,000

Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Special Rev Bonds, Series 2014A
Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Special Rev Bonds, Series 2014B
Limited Tax G.O. and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2015
Bond Issue Discount - Series 2015

(27,706)

-

(1,763)

(25,943)

Subordinate Limited Tax G.O. and
Special Revenue Refunding,
Bonds Series 2018B

5,700,000

Bond Issue Discount - Series 2018B

-

(128,189)

-

-

(11,078)

5,700,000
(117,111)

Accrued Interest on Subordinate
Limited Tax G.O. and Special
Revenue Bonds, Series 2018
Total

1,525,279
$ 19,785,258

549,752
$

736,222

$

490,000

1,585,031

627,159

$ 19,894,321

The District has no capital or operating leases.
Reserve Funds
Emergency Reserve
The District has provided for an Emergency Reserve fund equal to at least 3% of fiscal year spending for
2023, as defined under TABOR.
Debt Service Reserves
The District maintains a Debt Service Reserve as required with the issuance of the Series 2015 Bonds.

This information is an integral part of the accompanying budget.
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LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY

$10,830,000
Limited Tax General Obligation
and Special Revenue Bonds
Series 2015, Dated December 17, 2015
Interest Rate of 5.375% Payable June 1 and
December 1, Principal Due December 1
Principal
Interest
Total

Year Ended December 31,
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
2045

$

150,000
170,000
180,000
205,000
215,000
245,000
255,000
285,000
300,000
330,000
350,000
385,000
405,000
440,000
465,000
505,000
535,000
580,000
610,000
660,000
695,000
750,000
1,670,000

$

558,194
550,131
540,994
531,318
520,300
508,744
495,575
481,869
466,550
450,425
432,688
413,875
393,181
371,413
347,763
322,769
295,625
266,869
235,693
202,906
167,431
130,075
89,763

$

708,194
720,131
720,994
736,318
735,300
753,744
750,575
766,869
766,550
780,425
782,688
798,875
798,181
811,413
812,763
827,769
830,625
846,869
845,693
862,906
862,431
880,075
1,759,763

TOTAL

$

10,525,000

$

9,339,869

$

19,864,869

No assurance provided. See summary of significant assumptions.
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RESOLUTION TO ADOPT BUDGET, APPROPRIATE FUNDS AND CERTIFY A MILL
LEVY FOR THE LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2 (2023)
STATE OF COLORADO
COUNTY OF ARAPAHOE

)
) ss.
)

The Board of Directors of the Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2, Arapahoe
County, Colorado held at a special meeting on Tuesday, October 18, 2022, at the hour of 5:30 p.m.
The following members of the Board of Directors were present:
Phil Cernanec
Maria McAfee
Zach Tedeschi
Holly Bundschu
Jim Bowlby, Jr.
Also present were Denise Denslow and Thuy Dam; CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA”), and
Joan Fritsche, Fritsche Law LLC.
Ms. Denslow reported that, prior to the meeting each of the Directors was notified of the
date, time and place of this meeting and the purpose for which it was called. She further reported
that this meeting is a special meeting of the Board of Directors of the District and that Notice of
meeting was posted on the District’s website. A copy of the published Notice as to Proposed 2023
Budget Hearing is incorporated into these proceedings.

132

NOTICE AS TO PROPOSED 2023 BUDGET HEARING
(PUBLISHED)

of
LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2

133

RESOLUTION
LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH FUND
AND ADOPTING A BUDGET, LEVYING PROPERTY TAXES FOR COLLECTION IN THE
YEAR 2023 TO HELP DEFRAY THE COSTS OF GOVERNMENT, AND APPROPRIATING
SUMS OF MONEY TO EACH FUND IN THE AMOUNTS AND FOR THE PURPOSES SET
FORTH HEREIN FOR THE LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2,
ARAPAHOE COUNTY, COLORADO, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE
FIRST DAY OF JANUARY 2023, AND ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER, 2023.
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2 has
authorized its budget officer to prepare and submit a proposed budget to said governing body at
the proper time; and
WHEREAS, the proposed budget has been submitted to the Board of Directors of the
District for its consideration; and
WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, published in accordance with law, said proposed
budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing was held on
October 18, 2022, and interested electors were given the opportunity to file or register any
objections to said proposed budget; and
WHEREAS, the budget being adopted by the Board has been prepared based on the best
information available to the Board regarding the effects of Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado
Constitution; and
WHEREAS, whatever increases may have been made in the expenditures, like increases
were added to the revenues so that the budget remains in balance, as required by law.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2, ARAPAHOE COUNTY,
COLORADO:
Section 1.
Summary of 2023 Revenues and 2023 Expenditures. That the estimated
revenues and expenditures for each fund for fiscal year 2023, as more specifically set forth in the
budget attached hereto, are accepted and approved.
Section 2.
Adoption of Budget. That the budget as submitted and attached hereto and
incorporated herein is approved and adopted as the budget of the Littleton Village Metropolitan
District No. 2 for fiscal year 2023.
Section 3.
Levy of General Property Taxes. That the foregoing budget indicated that
the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for the General Fund for operating expenses
from property tax revenue is $_______ and that the 2022 valuation for assessment, as certified by
the Arapahoe County Assessor, is $__________. That for the purposes of meeting all general
operating expenses of the District during the 2023 budget year, there is hereby levied a tax of
3
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_____ mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable property within the
District for the year 2022.
Section 4.
Levy of Debt Retirement Expenses. That the foregoing budget indicates
that the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for the Debt Service Fund for debt
retirement expense from property tax revenue is $_______, and that the 2022 valuation for
assessment, as certified by the Arapahoe County Assessor is $__________. That for the purposes
of meeting all debt retirement expenses of the District during the 2023 budget year, there is hereby
levied a tax of _______ mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment of all taxable
property within the District for the year 2022.
Section 5.
Refund and Abatement. That the foregoing budget indicates the amount of
money necessary to balance the budget for the Refund and Abatement Fund for refund and
abatement expenses from property tax revenue is $0, and that the 2022 valuation for assessment,
as certified by the Arapahoe County Assessor is $__________. That for purposes of meeting all
refund and abatement expenses imposed by the Arapahoe County Assessor for the 2023 budget
year, there is hereby levied a tax of 0.000 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation of assessment
of all taxable property within the District for the year 2022.
Section 6.
Certification to County Commissioners. That the Accountant for the
District is hereby authorized and directed to immediately certify to the County Commissioners of
Arapahoe County, the mill levy for the District hereinabove determined and set forth on the
Certification of Tax Levies for Non School Governments attached hereto.
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INSERT
CERTIFICATION OF TAX LEVIES FOR NON SCHOOL GOVERNMENTS
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Section 7.
Appropriations. That the amounts set forth as expenditures and balances
remaining, as specifically allocated in the budget attached hereto, are hereby appropriated from
the revenue of each fund to each fund, for the purposes stated and no other.
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 18TH DAY OF OCTOBER 2022.

LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT NO. 2

By:
Phil Cernanec, President

Attest:

Zach Tedeschi, Secretary

6

LVMD2
2023 Budget Resolution
2022-10-18

137

EXHIBIT A
2023 BUDGET
ATTACHED HERETO

138

LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
A RESOLUTION CALLING THE 2023 REGULAR DISTRICT ELECTION AND
APPOINTING A DESIGNATED ELECTION OFFICIAL
WHEREAS, the Littleton Village Metropolitan District No. 2 (“District”) is a quasimunicipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado and a duly organized and
existing special district pursuant to Title 32, Colorado Revised Statutes; and
WHEREAS, the terms of office of Directors Cernanec, Tedeschi, and Bowlby shall expire
after their successors are elected at the regular special district election to be held on May 2, 2023
(“Election”) and have taken office; and
WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the Special District Act (“Act”) and the
Colorado Local Government Election Code (“Code”) (the Act and the Code being referred to
jointly as the “Election Laws”), the Election must be conducted to elect three (3) Directors to serve
for a term of four (4) years.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2, ARAPAHOE COUNTY, STATE
OF COLORADO THAT:
1.
The regular election of the eligible electors of the District shall be held on May 2,
2023, between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., pursuant to and in accordance with the
Election Laws and other applicable laws. At that time, three (3) Directors will be elected to serve
four-year terms.
2.
The Election shall be conducted as a mail ballot election in accordance with all
relevant provisions of the Election Laws. The Designated Election Official shall prepare the Plan
for conducting the mail ballot Election. There shall be no election precinct or polling place. All
mail ballots shall be returned to the Designated Election Official's office, located at 3900 E.
Mexico Ave., #300, Denver, CO 80210.
3.
The Board of Directors hereby designates Mandi Kirk as the Designated Election
Official (“DEO”) for the conduct of the Election on behalf of the District, and the DEO is hereby
authorized and directed to proceed with any action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the
provisions of this Resolution and of the Election Laws or other applicable laws. Among other
matters, the DEO shall distribute and publish the call for nominations in accordance with SB21262, appoint election judges as necessary, appoint the Canvass Board, arrange for the required
notices of election, printing of ballots, and direct that all other appropriate actions be accomplished.
4.
Self-Nomination and Acceptance forms will be available at the DEO’s office
located at the above address or via email - mandi@fritschelaw.com. All candidates must file a
Self-Nomination and Acceptance form with the DEO no earlier than January 1, 2023, nor later
than the close of business on Friday, February 24, 2023.
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5.
If the only matter before the electors is the election of Directors of the District and
if, at the close of business on February 24, 2023, there are not more candidates than offices to be
filled at the Election, including candidates timely filing affidavits of intent to be a write in
candidate no later than February 27, 2023, the DEO shall cancel the Election and declare the
candidates elected. Notice of such cancellation shall be published and posted in accordance with
the Code.
6.
If any part or provision of this Resolution is adjudged to be unenforceable or
invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair or invalidate the remaining provisions of this
Resolution, it being the Board's intention that the various provisions hereof are severable.
7.
Any and all actions previously taken by the DEO, the Secretary of the Board of
Directors, or any other persons acting on their behalf pursuant to the Election Laws or other
applicable laws, are hereby ratified and confirmed.
8.
All acts, orders, and resolutions, or parts thereof, of the Board which are
inconsistent or in conflict with this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent only of such
inconsistency or conflict.
9.

The provisions of this Resolution shall take effect immediately.

ADOPTED this 18th day of October, 2022.

LITTLETON VILLAGE METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT NO. 2
By
Phil Cernanec, President

Attest:

Zach Tedeschi, Secretary
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